
                                                                                       
 

 

 

Natural Resources Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting will be held both in person at the County Council Chambers, 100 Ribaut Road, 

Beaufort and also virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, February 07, 2022 
* Immediately following the Special Called Meeting of County Council, no sooner than 

2:00 PM* 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
  ALICE HOWARD, CHAIRMAN    GERALD DAWSON, VICE-CHAIR 
  LOGAN CUNNINGHAM  LAWRENCE MCELYNN 
  YORK GLOVER  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - JANUARY 3, 2022 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS - (ANYONE who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the 
meeting will limit their comments to no longer than three (3) minutes ( a total of 15 minutes ) and will 
address Council in a respectful manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the 
use of profane, abusive, or obscene language) 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

7. RECOMMEND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF A ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR NINETEEN (19) RURAL AND CRITICAL LANDS PRESERVATION 
PROGRAM PROPERTIES FROM VARIOUS ZONING DISTRICTS TO T1 NATURAL PRESERVE (T1NP) 

8. RECOMMEND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF A ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
REQUEST FOR 6.26 ACRES (R100 027 000 0387 0000) 186 CHEROKEE FARMS ROAD FROM T2 RURAL TO 
T4 HAMLET CENTER OPEN 

1



Natural Resources Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

9. RECOMMEND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): SECTIONS A.2.40 (PERMITTED ACTIVITIES), A.4.40 (PERMITTED 
ACTIVITIES), AND A.5.40 (PERMITTED ACTIVITIES) TO REVISE THE LADY’S ISLAND COMMUNITY 
PRESERVATION, LADY’S ISLAND NEIGHBORHOOD ACTIVITY CENTER, AND LADY’S ISLAND PROFESSIONAL 
OFFICE DISTRICTS TO INCLUDE SHORT-TERM RENTALS AS A SPECIAL USE. 

10. RECOMMEND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF A ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 6.55 ACRES (R600 041 000 0172 0000) AT 28 BUCKINGHAM 
PLANTATION DRIVE FROM T4 HAMLET CENTER OPEN TO T4 NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER 

11. RECOMMEND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE OSPREY 
POINT (MAILIND BLUFF) PLANNED UNIT   DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER PLAN TO CONVERT THE 
COMMERCIAL AREA TO MULTIFAMILY  

12. RECOMMEND FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE FOR APPROVAL OF A ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 11.66 ACRES (R600 009 000 0030 0000) AT 100 RAWSTROM 
DRIVE FROM T2 RURAL TO T2 RURAL NEIGHBORHOOD 

13. RECOMMENDATION OF FIRST READING FOR AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY A PORTION OF PROPERTY 
OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R200 010 000 0170 0000 

14. DISCUSSION OF STORMWATER UTILITY FEES AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS 

15. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO PROVIDE FUNDING NOT TO EXCEED 
$25,000 FOR A DESIGN PLANNING CHARRETTE TO DEVELOP DESIGN CRITERIA AND DRAWINGS TO 
ENHANCE THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE LADY’S ISLAND PLAN 

16. REAPPOINTMENT OF ED PAPPAS TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION FOR A THREE-
YEAR TERM WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2025 

17. APPOINTMENT OF DANIEL RIEDEL TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION FOR A PARTIAL 
TERM WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2023 

18. REAPPOINTMENT OF JAMES ATKINS AND JOHN MICHAEL BROCK TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY DESIGN 
REVIEW BOARD EACH FOR A THIRD TERM WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2026 

19. REAPPOINTMENT OF CHERYL STEELE TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY HISTORIC PRESERVATION REVIEW 
BOARD FOR A SECOND TERM WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2026 

20. APPOINTMENT OF AILEEN LeBLANC TO THE BEAUFORT COUNTY DESIGN REVIEW BOARD FOR A FIRST 
TERM WITH AN EXPIRATION DATE OF 2026 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

 

21. EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO SC CODE SECTION 30-4-70(A)(2) FOR THE RECEIPT OF LEGAL ADVICE 
WHERE THE LEGAL ADVICE RELATES TO A PENDING, THREATENED, OR POTENTIAL CLAIM OR OTHER 
MATTERS COVERED BY THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGE, (RURAL LANDS) 

22. MATTERS ARISING OUT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION 

23. ADJOURNMENT 

 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


Natural Resources Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

 

3



 

 

 

Natural Resources Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
This meeting was held both in person at the County Council Chambers, 100 Ribaut Road, 

Beaufort, and also virtually through Zoom. 

Monday, January 03, 2022 
3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chair Howard called the meeting to order at 2:40 PM 

PRESENT 
Committee Chair Alice Howard 
Committee Vice-Chair Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member D. Paul Sommerville 
Council Member Stu Rodman 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Chris Hervochon 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
Council Member Logan Cunningham 
 
ABSENT 
Council Member Brian Flewelling 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chair Howard led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. FOIA 

Committee Chair Howard stated public notice of this meeting had been published, posted, and distributed 
in compliance with the SC FOIA Act. 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Glover to approve 
the agenda. The motion was approved without objection.  
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

4

Item 5.



Natural Resources Committee Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Glover to approve 
the December 6, 2021 minutes. The motion was approved without objection.   
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENTS  

No citizens comment  
 

 

 

7. AN ORDINANCE REGARDING A TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): 
SECTION 4.1.70 (DRIVE-THROUGH FACILITIES) TO CLARIFY THE STANDARDS FOR DRIVE-THROUGHS IN 
TRANSECT ZONES. 

Discussion: Rob Merchant stated the proposed amendment revises the standards for drive-through 
facilities in Transect zones, those areas planned for mixed-use, walkable development. Discussions 
surrounding several recent drive-through applications revealed that the standards for drive-through 
facilities should be clarified. In Transect zones, buildings are to be built close to the street, with parking 
and all other vehicle-use areas located behind the front façade. Drive-through lanes are not intended to 
circulate around or through the building. The proposed ordinance revisions clarify where service windows 
and drive-through lanes are located, set out standards for the safety of pedestrians on the site, and 
require a traffic engineering assessment of the site plan to ensure adequate vehicle stacking and 
circulation on the site. In addition, at the Planning Commission’s request, standards for access on corner 
lots and lots with alley access have been added. 

Council Member Sommerville stated businesses that have primary road access is not safe for individuals 
that are driving and suddenly must stop because of traffic.  

Eric Greenway stated staff will evaluate the ordinance and bring back recommendations to the council. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Sommerville, seconded by Council Member Glover to the An 
Ordinance regarding a Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Section 4.1.70 
(Drive-Through Facilities) to clarify the standards for drive-throughs in Transect zones and move forward 
to County Council for approval with having alternatives. The motion was approved without objection.  

To see the full comments, click the link below:  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/152335 
 

8. BEAUFORT CONSERVATION DISTRICT 2021 ANNUAL REPORT  

Discussion:  Denise Parsick presented the Beaufort Conservation District Annual Highlights  

To see the full presentation, click the link below: 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/152335 

Status: For Informational Purposes Only 
 

9. ADJOURNMENT  

The meeting was adjourned at 3:28 PM 

 

 

  

5

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/152335
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/152335


6

Item 6.



7

Item 6.



8

Item 6.



9

Item 6.



10

Item 6.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for nineteen (19) Rural and Critical Lands Preservation Program 
properties from various zoning districts to T1 Natural Preserve (T1NP) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning  

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This rezoning application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their January 3, 2022 
meeting. At that time the Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the proposed rezonings 
to County Council. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

In order to provide the greatest possible zoning protection on nineteen (19) County-owned passive parks 
properties, staff has initiated a rezoning request in order to convert them from their current zoning districts to 
the most protective zoning district, T1 Natural Preserve. The nineteen properties’ current zoning districts 
include T2 Rural, T3 Edge, T3 Hamlet Neighborhood, T3 Neighborhood, T4 Hamlet Center Open, C5 Regional 
Center Mixed Use, S1 Industrial, Lady’s Island Community Preservation, and Planned Unit Development, all of 
which are no longer appropriate. The requested rezoning will ensure continued and future conservation and 
passive recreation. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the zoning amendment for nineteen (19) Rural and Critical Lands Preservation Program 
properties from various zoning districts to T1 Natural Preserve (T1NP). 

 
 

11

Item 7.



ORDINANCE 2022 / __ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY TO CHANGE 
NINETEEN (19) RURAL AND CRITICAL LANDS PRESERVATION PROGRAM 

PROPERTIES FROM VARIOUS ZONINGS TO T1 NATURAL PRESERVE. 

 WHEREAS, North Williman Island (R700 030 000 0005 0000, R700 030 000 0036 0000) is 
currently zoned T1 Natural Preserve and T2 Rural; and  

 WHEREAS, McLeod (R100 015 000 0046 0000, R100 015 000 040A 0000) is currently zoned T2 
Rural; and 

 WHEREAS, Ihly (R100 016 000 0065 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and  

 WHEREAS, Lucky (R100 016 000 0238 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and  

 WHEREAS, Port Royal Battleground (R100 020 000 0165 0000) is currently zoned S1 Industrial; 
and 

 WHEREAS, Brewer Memorial Park (R200 015 000 143C 0000, R200 015 000 0142 0000) is 
currently zoned T4 Hamlet Center Open; and  

 WHEREAS, Battey-Wilson (R200 005 000 0005 0000, R200 005 000 0165 0000) is currently 
zoned T2 Rural and no zoning; and 

 WHEREAS, Pineview (R200 010 000 0170 0000) is currently zoned Lady’s Island Community 
Preservation; and 

 WHEREAS, Crystal Lake Park (R200 018 000 018A 0000, R123 015 000 1004 0000) is currently 
zoned T1 Natural Preserve, T3 Neighborhood, and T3 Hamlet Neighborhood; and 

 WHEREAS, Jenkins Creek and Jenkins Islands (R300 011 000 012B 0000, R300 011 000 0308 
0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and 

 WHEREAS, Station Creek Park (R300 036 000 0003 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and 

 WHEREAS, Mobley Hummock (R600 006 000 0032 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and 

 WHEREAS, Manigault Neck Corridor (R600 010 000 0205 0000, R600 010 000 0209 0000, R600 
010 000 001A 0000, R600 010 000 0186 0000, R600 005 000 0003 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and 

 WHEREAS, Okatie Marsh Preserve (R600 008 000 003F 0000, R600 013 000 003C 0000, R600 
013 000 0005 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and  

 WHEREAS, Barrel Landing (R600 021 000 0048 0000) is currently zoned Planned Unit 
Development; and  

 WHEREAS, Okatie River Park (R600 021 000 0673 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and  

 WHEREAS, Pinckney Point Preserve (R600 014 000 002G 0000, R600 014 000 002J 0000, R600 
014 000 002F 0000, R600 014 000 002K 0000, R600 014 000 002B 0000) is currently zoned T2 Rural; and  

12

Item 7.



 WHEREAS, Forby Stormwater (R600 040 000 0134 0000) is currently zoned C5 Regional Center 
Mixed Use; and  

 WHEREAS, Bailey Memorial Park (R600 039 00B 0147 0000) is currently zoned T3 Edge; and   

 WHEREAS, the nineteen properties’ current zoning districts are no longer appropriate for these 
properties, which were purchased through the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation Program with the intent 
to preserve the properties; and  

 WHEREAS, Beaufort County Planning Staff have requested the change from each property’s 
current zoning to T1 Natural Preserve; and  

WHEREAS, the requested rezoning to T1 Natural Preserve will ensure continued and future 
conservation and passive recreation for these properties; and 

 WHEREAS, the proposed amendments are outlined in red on the attached maps; and   

 WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Planning Commission considered the request on 
January, 3, 2022, voting to recommend that County Council approve the request; and 

 WHEREAS, County Council now wishes to amend the zoning map to change the parcels’  
zoning from their various zoning designations to T1 Natural Preserve. 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly assembled as follows: 

1. The zoning map of the County is hereby amended to reflect the zoning of Parcel ID 
Numbers R700 030 000 0005 0000, R700 030 000 0036 0000, R100 015 000 0046 0000, 
R100 015 000 040A 0000, R100 016 000 0065 0000, R100 016 000 0238 0000, R100 
020 000 0165 0000, R200 015 000 143C 0000, R200 015 000 0142 0000, R200 005 000 
0005 0000, R200 005 000 0165 0000, R200 010 000 0170 0000, R200 018 000 018A 
0000, R123 015 000 1004 0000, R300 011 000 012B 0000, R300 011 000 0308 0000, 
R300 036 000 0003 0000, R600 006 000 0032 0000, R600 010 000 0205 0000, R600 010 
000 0209 0000, R600 010 000 001A 0000, R600 010 000 0186 0000, R600 005 000 0003 
0000, R600 008 000 003F 0000, R600 013 000 003C 0000, R600 013 000 0005 0000, 
R600 021 000 0048 0000, R600 021 000 0673 0000, R600 014 000 002G 0000, R600 
014 000 002J 0000, R600 014 000 002F 0000, R600 014 000 002K 0000, R600 014 000 
002B 0000, R600 040 000 0134 0000, and R600 039 00B 0147 0000 as T1 Natural 
Preserve. 

2. Staff is directed to make the changes to the zoning map and to report to all persons 
necessary or helpful that the zoning has so changed. 

 

Ordained this ___ day of ______________, 2022 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

13

Item 7.



      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

Item 7.



North Williman Island 

 

15

Item 7.



North Williman Island continued  

 

16

Item 7.



 

McLeod

 

17

Item 7.



McLeod continued 

 

18

Item 7.



Ihly 

 

19

Item 7.



Lucky 

 

20

Item 7.



Port Royal Battleground 

 

21

Item 7.



Brewer Memorial Park 

 

22

Item 7.



Brewer Memorial Park continued 

 

23

Item 7.



Battey-Wilson 

 

24

Item 7.



Battey-Wilson continued 

 

25

Item 7.



Pineview 

 

26

Item 7.



Crystal Lake Park 

 

27

Item 7.



Crystal Lake Park continued 

 

28

Item 7.



Jenkins Creek and Jenkins Islands  

 

29

Item 7.



Jenkins Creek and Jenkins Islands continued 

 

30

Item 7.



Station Creek Park 

 

31

Item 7.



Mobley Hummock 

 

32

Item 7.



Manigault Neck Corridor

 

 

33

Item 7.



Manigault Neck Corridor continued 

 

34

Item 7.



Manigault Neck Corridor continued 

 

35

Item 7.



Manigault Neck Corridor continued 

 

36

Item 7.



Manigault Neck Corridor continued 

 

37

Item 7.



Okatie Marsh Preserve 

 

38

Item 7.



Okatie Marsh Preserve continued

 

 

39

Item 7.



Okatie Marsh Preserve continued 

 

40

Item 7.



Barrel Landing 

 

41

Item 7.



Okatie River Park 

 

42

Item 7.



Pinckney Point Preserve 

 

 

43

Item 7.



Pinckney Point Preserve continued

 

 

44

Item 7.



Pinckney Point Preserve continued 

 

45

Item 7.



Pinckney Point Preserve continued 

 

46

Item 7.



Pinckney Point Preserve continued 

 

47

Item 7.



Forby Stormwater 

 

48

Item 7.



Bailey Memorial Park 

 

49

Item 7.



RCLP-2022 – 19 Rural and Critical Lands Properties – Various to T1NP  Page 1 of 1 
 

 

TO:   Natural Resources Committee 

FROM:  Juliana Smith, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning Department 

DATE:  February 7, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for nineteen (19) Rural and Critical Lands 
Preservation Program properties from various zoning districts to T1 Natural Preserve 
(T1NP); Staff Initiated 

 

STAFF REPORT: 

A. BACKGROUND: Since 2000, Beaufort County has preserved over 25,000 acres of land through the 
Rural and Critical Lands Preservation program for conservation, parks, buffers, scenic vistas, and for 
preservation of valuable economic and natural resources. Despite their acquisition through the Rural 
and Critical Lands Preservation Program, many of these properties still hold zoning districts that are 
no longer appropriate for the future intended conservation uses of the land.   

B.  SUMMARY OF REQUEST: In order to provide the greatest possible zoning protection on the 
nineteen County-owned passive parks properties, staff has initiated a rezoning request in order to 
convert them from their current zoning districts to the most protective zoning district, T1 Natural 
Preserve. The nineteen properties’ current zoning districts include T2 Rural, T3 Edge, T3 Hamlet 
Neighborhood, T3 Neighborhood, T4 Hamlet Center Open, C5 Regional Center Mixed Use, S1 
Industrial, Lady’s Island Community Preservation, and Planned Unit Development, all of which are 
no longer appropriate. The requested rezoning will ensure continued and future conservation and 
passive recreation.  

 The affected Rural and Critical Preservation Program properties can be reviewed at the link below. 
https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/planning/rural-and-critical-lands-preservation.html 

C. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.  

D.  BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION: At the January 3, 2022 meeting of the 
Beaufort County Planning Commission, the Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval 
of the proposed zoning amendments.  

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

50

Item 7.

https://www.beaufortcountysc.gov/planning/rural-and-critical-lands-preservation.html


51

Item 7.

snagid
Highlight

snagid
Highlight



52

Item 7.

snagid
Highlight

snagid
Highlight

snagid
Highlight

snagid
Highlight



 

 
 

January 3, 2022 
 
Beaufort County Planning Commission 
Robert Smalls Complex  
100 Ribaut Road  
Beaufort, South Carolina 29902 
 
Dear Beaufort County Planning Commissioners, 
 

Thank you for the opportunity to share comments on behalf of the Coastal Conservation 
League regarding the proposed rezoning of 11.66 acres on Rawstrom Drive from T2 Rural to T2 
Rural Neighborhood. We respectfully ask the commission to deny this request for rezoning. 

 
As laid out in the staff report, the request is not consistent with Beaufort County’s 2040 

Comprehensive Plan, which designates this portion of the County as remaining rural in nature 
with a density of one dwelling unit per three acres. The rezoning request would amount to a 
three-fold increase in density from what is permitted under current zoning.  

 
Also as clearly articulated in the staff report, the rezoning request is in direct conflict 

with the County’s Development Code and the intent of the T2 Rural Neighborhood zoning 
district, which is expressly intended for existing clustered communities in rural areas and not to 
promote tract development or rezonings. Moreover, rezoning this individual parcel could open 
the door to subsequent rezonings on any T2R properties in the County, which could erode and 
further strain the rural character of those areas, induce sprawl development, and threaten 
critical natural resources.  
 

If allowed, the requested rezoning would completely undermine the purpose and intent 
of the T2 Rural Neighborhood zoning district. The Comprehensive Plan and Development Code 
intentionally designate this area as rural to minimize strain on schools and emergency services 
and to help protect water quality in the Okatie and Colleton Rivers.  The current zoning and 
future land use designation is correct, and we agree with planning staff that it should remain in 
place and that the rezoning should be denied. 

 
Lastly, we fully support the adoption of the Greenprint Plan as an appendix to the 

County’s Comprehensive Plan, as well as the downzoning requests for Rural and Critical Lands 
properties to T1 Natural Preserve.  

 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 

 
Respectfully, 
 
Jessie White 
South Coast Office Director 
843.522.1800 | jesssiew@scccl.org  
 

53

Item 7.

snagid
Highlight



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Zoning Map Amendment Request for 6.26 Acres (R100 027 000 0387 0000) 186 Cherokee Farms Road from T2 
Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning  

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This rezoning application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their November 1, 2022 
meeting. At that time, a motion to recommend approval of the rezoning failed to pass with two voting for and 
three voting against. The item went before the Metropolitan Planning Commission at their December 20, 2021 
meeting who unanimously recommended approval. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant is requesting to rezone approximately 6.26 acres of land located on Port Royal Island on the 
south side of Cherokee Farms Road 600 feet east of Habersham from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. This parcel has the potential to serve the Habersham/Cherokee Farms community 
with supporting businesses that may not be appropriate in the existing Market Street main street commercial 
district.   

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the zoning amendment for 186 Cherokee Farms Road from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center 
Open. 

 

 

54

Item 8.



 

 
181 Bluffton Road    Suite F203   Bluffton, South Carolina 29910 

Voice: 843.815.4800  jktiller@jktiller.com   Fax: 843.815.4802 
 

 Comprehensive Land Planning ■  Landscape Architecture  
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
TO: Mr. Robert Merchant 
 
FROM: Josh K. Tiller, PLA, ASLA 
 
DATE: December 14, 2021 
 
SUBJ: 186 Cherokee Farms Road re-zoning 
 
 
Mr. Merchant, 
 
The attached emails include additional discussions regarding the zoning for 186 Cherokee Farms Road. 
We felt it would be important that this information be shared with the Metropolitan Planning Commission. 
 
Email #1 HABERSHAM COMPANIES SUPPORT FOR T4 HAMLET CENTER OPEN ZONING: “FW: 
186 Cherokee Farms” (September 9, 2021): 
 
This email from Mr. Robert Turner and Patrick Kelly (of The Habersham Companies) outlines their initial 
support for the T4NC zoning. Following this email, in subsequent meeting with you and representatives of 
The Habersham Companies, it was determined that we would settle on the T4 Hamlet Center Open 
zoning.  
 
 
Email #2 MCAS SUPPORT FOR T4 HAMLET CENTER OPEN- CONCEPT PLAN A-2: “FW: Rezoning 
– 186 Cherokee Farms” (November 3, 2021): 
 
This email from Mr. David J. Trail, Community Plans and Liaison Offices MCAS, outlines his support for 
the T4 Hamlet Center Open if it excludes the assisted living use. It should be noted that this use would be 
severely limited with the AICUZ overlay district’s restrictions. In addition, Mr. Trail is working on a 
memorandum of understanding that would show our commitment to cooperating with any use opposed by 
the MCAS. 
 
 
 
(End of Memo) 

55

Item 8.



From: Randy Mikals
To: Josh Tiller
Subject: FW: 186 Cherokee Farms
Date: Thursday, September 9, 2021 1:54:40 PM

 
 
From: Robert Turner [mailto:rturner@habershamsc.com] 
Sent: Thursday, September 9, 2021 12:56 PM
To: Jennifer Keenan <jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com>
Cc: Patrick Kelly <pkelly@habershamsc.com>; Randym@greenlineforest.com Mikals
<randym@greenlineforest.com>
Subject: Re: 186 Cherokee Farms
 
Jennifer did you find out if you were required to have a 50' Buffer on the Cherokee farms side.
Also if you can come up with the type uses you think would go on the site that would be
helpful. We will talk with the architects about next week. 

Robert Turner
President & Broker
The Habersham Companies
22 Market - Beaufort, SC 29906
(877) 542-2377 / HabershamSC.com

 
 
On Thu, Sep 9, 2021 at 12:06 PM Jennifer Keenan <jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com>
wrote:

Good morning Patrick,
 
Thank you.  How are plans coming for the charette that was proposed when we met?  Randy
and I would love to get together and talk with both teams early next week if that works for
you?  Please let me have a date and time that works and I’ll reach out to Josh Tiller & Jeff
Ackerman.  We are on a bit of a time constraint due to the county meetings and potential
traffic study.
 
Kind regards,
Jennifer

On Sep 8, 2021, at 11:08 AM, Patrick Kelly <pkelly@habershamsc.com>
wrote:
 
Thank you Jennifer.  Our support primarily is for a project with good planning
and good architecture.  Knowing that the T4NC encourages that is a positive
thing in our view.  We're ok with the email and appreciate you sending it to us

56

Item 8.

JoshTiller
Highlight

mailto:randym@greenlineforest.com
mailto:josh@jktiller.com
https://habershamsc.com/
https://habershamsc.com/
mailto:jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com
mailto:pkelly@habershamsc.com


for review.
 
-Patrick
 
On Wed, Sep 8, 2021 at 7:58 AM Jennifer Keenan
<jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com> wrote:

Good morning Bob & Patrick,
 
Thank you for taking the time to meet with us yesterday.  We enjoyed
meeting you both and look forward to developing a project we all can be
proud of on the land at 186 Cherokee Farms Road,  Below is the email we
plan on sending Rob Merchant & Eric Greenway as discussed:-
 
Good morning Eric & Robert,
 
Per your suggestion Randy and I had an informative and productive
introductory meeting with Bob Turner & Patrick Kelly at their offices in
Habersham this afternoon.  We discussed our desire to rezone 186 Cherokee
Farms Road  to T4NC and were delighted to receive their support in this
endeavor.  We discussed working closely with their Design and Review
Board to align the project aesthetically with Habersham and to provide a
development to service, support and enhance the lifestyle of the residents of
Habersham and the surrounding communities.    Bob and Patrick offered to
host a round table discussion and brainstorming session with their architects
and integral team members and us and our team including Josh Tiller of
Tiller & Associates. & Jeff Ackerman of Carolina Engineering.   We expect
this meeting will take place within the next few days.  Some initial ideas
discussed today include an Assisted Living Facility, Animal Medical
Services, Specialty Grocery store, Home Health Care, and a Brewery and/or
Distillery.  
 
Thank you again for the suggestion.  If you have any questions please let us
know.
 
Kind regards,
Jennifer & Randy Mikals
 
 
jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com
(843) 540 1449
 
 

 

 

57

Item 8.

JoshTiller
Highlight

mailto:jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com
mailto:jennifer@dancingdolphinproperties.com


From: Trail CIV David J
To: randym@greenlineforest.com
Subject: FW: Rezoning - 186 Cherokee Farms
Date: Wednesday, November 3, 2021 9:26:08 AM

Good Morning Sir,
 
It was a pleasure to meet you on Monday night.  Below is the e-mail that was mentioned at the
Planning Meeting.  I wanted to make sure you have a copy so we’re all on the same page.  As
discussed, I’ll start working on an agreement that will sufficiently protect the Marine Corps’ interests
so that we can remove our objection from the rezoning.  Please don’t hesitate to reach out in the
meantime.
 
Very Respectfully,
 
Dave
 
David J. Trail
Director, Government and External Relations (S-7) |
Community Plans and Liaison Officer
Marine Corps Air Station Beaufort, South Carolina
W: (843) 228-7119
C: (774) 509-3940
david.j.trail@usmc.mil
 

From: Trail CIV David J 
Sent: Monday, November 1, 2021 3:24 PM
To: Merchant, Robert <robm@bcgov.net>
Cc: Krieger CIV Mary R <mary.krieger@usmc.mil>
Subject: RE: Rezoning - 186 Cherokee Farms
 
Good Afternoon Sir,
 
Thanks for the notification on the rezoning proposal.  The facts regarding the development proposal for 186
Cherokee Farms Rd (R100 027 000 0387 0000), as MCAS Beaufort knows them, are as follows:
 
The Property is:

-          6.26 acres (based on Beaufort County Property data),
-          Currently zoned as T2 Rural Neighborhood (T2RN)
-          in the MCAS Overlay District, and
-          in the 65-70  decibel (dB) Day-Night Average Sound Level (DNL) noise contour

 
Request: Rezone the parcel as T4 Hamlet Center Open (T4HC-O).  Based on the application, there are two
conceptual plans for the Property, however those plans simply envision how the property could be used, and do not
actually identify how the property will be used.

-          According to the Beaufort County zone standards, the Hamlet Center (T4HC) Zone is intended to integrate
appropriate, medium-density residential building types, such as duplexes, townhouses, small courtyard
housing, and mansion apartments in an environment conducive to walking and bicycling.  The T4 Hamlet
Center is appropriate for more rural areas, implementing the Comprehensive Plan goals of creating areas of

58

Item 8.

JoshTiller
Highlight

mailto:david.j.trail@usmc.mil
mailto:randym@greenlineforest.com
mailto:david.j.trail@usmc.mil


medium intensity residential in portions of Beaufort County, the City of Beaufort and Town of Port Royal.
The intent of the T4HC-O (Open) Sub-Zone is to provide neighborhoods with a broader amount of retail
and service uses in the scale and character of the T4HC zone.

-          In the interest of efficiency, we have analyzed the conceptual plans.  If either of those plans end up being
the final plan, without any changes, then the following analysis is valid.  If the plans change in any way,
then MCAS Beaufort objects until we have had sufficient time to review the plans and conduct analysis. 

 
             Concept Plan A-2
o    Medical Services Building (15,000SF)
o    Veterinary Clinic (7,500SF)
o    Retail (4,000SF)
o    Brewery (Repurposed Building, 12,000SF?)
o    Beer Garden
o    Tasting Room (4,000SF)

 
OR

 
             Concept Plan B
o    Medical Services Building (15,000SF)
o    Veterinary Clinic (7,500SF)
o    Retail (4,000SF)
o    Retail (4,000SF)
o    Medical/Assisted Living (35,000SF)

 
In determining whether or not the proposal is compatible with MCAS Beaufort’s mission and operations, the
proposal was evaluated with regards to airfield operations, noise standards, and potential compatibility problems as
well as reviewed in the context of the following references: 

-          Air Installations Compatible Use Zone (AICUZ) Study, Marine Corps Air Station (MCAS) Beaufort, 2013
-          Department of Defense Instruction 4165.57
-          Chief of Naval Operations and the Commandant of the Marine Corps OPNAVINST 11010.36C/MCO

11010.16 (Joint Instruction)
-          Standard Land Use Coding Manual; and
-          Beaufort County Community Development Code.

 
Based on this review and information provided, MCAS Beaufort has determined the following:
 
§  Concept Plan A-2 – MCAS Beaufort does not object, with the following two caveats: (1) as long as noise

mitigation measures are implemented and demonstrated prior to construction and (2) the plan does not deviate
from this conceptual plan.
-          Brewery: compatible.
-          Beer Garden: compatible.
-          Tasting Room: compatible.
-          Medical Services: compatible; measures to achieve noise level reduction (NLR) of 25 must be

incorporated into design and construction of structure.
-          Veterinary Clinic: compatible; measures to achieve NLR of 25 must be incorporated into design and

construction of structure.
-          Retail (exact type undetermined): compatible.

 
§  Concept Plan B - MCAS Beaufort Objects.

-          Assisted Living Facility: Incompatible.
-          Medical Services: compatible; measures to achieve noise level reduction (NLR) of 25 must be

incorporated into design and construction of structure.
-          Veterinary Clinic: compatible; measures to achieve NLR of 25 must be incorporated into design and

construction of structure.
-          Retail (exact type undetermined): compatible.

59

Item 8.

JoshTiller
Highlight

JoshTiller
Highlight



 
Beaufort County Community Development Code.  The Code requires measures to achieve noise level reduction
(NLR) of 25 be incorporated into design and construction of structures within this zone. 
 
Concept Plan A-2 – Based on the review and information provided, MCAS Beaufort does not object to the proposal
to rezone the Tax parcel R100 027 000 0387 0000 from T2 Rural Neighborhood to T4 Hamlet Center Open,
determined using the referenced Concept Plan A-2 with the caveat that the requirements listed are met. If any
additional changes occur to the proposal and conceptual plans, please let us know. We may need to re-evaluate our
analysis.
 
Concept Plan B – Based on the review and information provided, MCAS Beaufort objects to the proposal to rezone
the Tax parcel R100 027 000 0387 0000 from T2 Rural Neighborhood to T4 Hamlet Center Open, determined using
the referenced Concept Plan B. 
 
If you have any further questions please let me know.
 
Thank you!
 
David J. Trail
Director, Government and External Relations (S-7) |
Community Plans and Liaison Officer
Marine Corps Air Station Beaufort, South Carolina
W: (843) 228-7119
C: (774) 509-3940
david.j.trail@usmc.mil
 

From: Merchant, Robert <robm@bcgov.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 27, 2021 11:50 AM
To: Krieger CIV Mary R <mary.krieger@usmc.mil>
Cc: Trail CIV David J <david.j.trail@usmc.mil>
Subject: [Non-DoD Source] RE: Rezoning - 186 Cherokee Farms
 
               

60

Item 8.

JoshTiller
Highlight

JoshTiller
Highlight

JoshTiller
Highlight

JoshTiller
Highlight

mailto:david.j.trail@usmc.mil
mailto:robm@bcgov.net
mailto:mary.krieger@usmc.mil
mailto:david.j.trail@usmc.mil


61

Item 8.



ORDINANCE 2022/________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF BEAUFORT 

COUNTY TO CHANGE PARCEL ID NUMBER R100 027 000 0387 0000 

FROM T2 RURAL TO T4 HAMLET CENTER OPEN 

WHEREAS, parcel ID number R100 027 000 0387 0000 is currently zoned 

as T2 Rural; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of the parcel has requested to change the zoning 

from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open; and  

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Planning Commission considered the 

request on November 1, 2021, and failed to pass a motion to recommend approval 

of the rezoning; and 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Planning Commission considered the request 

on December 20, 2021 and recommend approval of the rezoning; and 

WHEREAS, County Council now wishes to amend the zoning map to 

change the parcel’s zoning from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open. 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly 

assembled as follows: 

1. The zoning map of the County is hereby amended to reflect the zoning of 

Parcel ID Number R100 027 000 0387 0000 as T4 Hamlet Center Open. 

2. Staff is directed to make the changes to the zoning map and to report to all 

persons necessary or helpful that the zoning has so changed. 

 

Ordained this ___ day of ______________, 2022 

       _________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

___________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

62

Item 8.



 

63

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 1 of 9 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

 
TO: Natural Resources Committee of County Council 

FROM: Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning Department 

DATE:  January 21, 2022 

SUBJECT: Zoning Map Amendment Request for 6.26 Acres (R100 027 000 0387 0000) 186 

Cherokee Farms Road from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open; Applicant: Randall R. 

Mikals. 

 

 

A. BACKGROUND: 

Case No.    ZMA-2021-06 

Applicant/Owner:   FTB Real Estate Company, LLC (Randall R. Mikals) 

Property Location: Located on Port Royal Island on the south side of Cherokee 

Farms Road approximately 600 feet from the entrance to 

Habersham.  

District/Map/Parcel: R100 027 000 0387 0000 

Property Size: 6.26 acres 

Future Land Use Designation: Urban Mixed Use and Air Installation Compatible Use Zone 

(AICUZ) 

Current Zoning District:  T2 Rural  

Proposed Zoning District: T4 Hamlet Center Open 

 

 

B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

The applicant is requesting to rezone approximately 6.26 acres of land located on Port Royal Island on the 

south side of Cherokee Farms Road 600 feet east of Habersham from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open 

Open (See Attachment A).  The property fronts approximately 1,100 feet along Cherokee Farms Road 

and contains a 12,000 square foot building that as recent at 2016 housed a landscaping business. The 

current property owner is interested in developing the site in a manner that is similar to neighboring 

Habersham and Cherokee Farms. The existing T2 Rural zoning limits residential development to 1 

dwelling unit per three acres and allows for some limited non-residential uses, such as agricultural support 

services, meeting facilities and places of worship.  

 

Habersham/Cherokee Farms Community:  The proposed rezoning adjoins the Habersham/Cherokee 

Farms community, a 427 acre traditional neighborhood development approved for 1,437 residential units 

and 228,000 square feet of commercial (See Attachment B). At the center of the community is a main 

street business district made up of approximately 110,000 square feet of mixed use (retail, office, 

residential) along Market Street. This business district has the capacity to expand north of Cherokee 

Farms Road with an additional 150,000 square feet of commercial space approved as part of the Cherokee 

Farms development.  This existing and future business district is thoroughly defined in the Habersham 

and Cherokee Farms master plans.   

 

64

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 2 of 9 

 

 

Zoning Request Change: The item was originally scheduled for the September 9 Beaufort County 

Planning Commission meeting. The applicant requested to pull the item from the agenda in order to have 

time to coordinate with the Habersham Land Company on a shared vision for the 6.26 acre parcel. The 

applicant met with Habersham on September 15 where they agreed to modify their request from T4 

Neighborhood Center to T4 Hamlet Center Open. The main difference between the two districts is that 

T4NC allows 4 story buildings with no limitation on total square footage. T4HCO allows 2 ½ story 

buildings with a maximum square footage of 50,000 square feet per building. The applicant has provided 

two conceptual plans to show how the property could be developed with the T4HCO zoning (see 

attached). The applicant and Habersham also agreed that development along the 6.26 acre parcel should 

not compete with, but complement the existing Habersham “main street” along Market Street. Therefore, 

the concept plans show a mix of uses (large scale brewery and beer garden, medical office buildings, 

animal services) that may not be appropriate in a main street setting. 

 

MCAS Airport Overlay District:  The entire property is located within the MCAS Airport Overlay 

District (MCAS-AO). The overlay includes all lands underlying the noise zones of 65 DNL (day-night 

average sound level) and above, and accident potential zones as designated in the most recent Air 

Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Report for MCAS-Beaufort as authorized for use by the 

Department of the Navy, and as adopted by the County Council of Beaufort County. This property’s 

location within noise zone 2a (65 to 70 DNL) limits gross residential density to 2 dwelling units per acre.  

MCAS Beaufort responded to the original zoning request to state that without a specific development 

proposal, they were unable to adequately evaluate the proposed zoning amendment. MCAS Beaufort has 

provided their official response in Appendix E of this report. 

 

C. ANALYSIS:  Section 7.3.40 of the Community Development Code states that a zoning map 

amendment may be approved if the proposed amendment: 

1. Is consistent with and furthers the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and the purposes 

of this Development Code. 

The future land use plan of the Comprehensive Plan designates this property as Urban Mixed-Use 

which is anticipated to be similar to the type and mix of land use currently found in the 

municipalities.  Commercial uses providing neighborhood retail and services are limited to collectors 

and arterials and within master planned mixed-use developments. This rezoning of this property to a 

mixed-use district meets the broader goals of the future land use plan, but it is important that any 

development on this property not compete with the existing Habersham/Cherokee Farms main street 

which has the capacity to grow by an additional 150,000 square feet.  

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of Ordinances. 

This is addressed in the response to question 1. 

3. Addresses a demonstrated community need. 

This parcel has the potential to serve the Habersham/Cherokee Farms community with supporting 

businesses that may not be appropriate in the existing Market Street main street commercial district.  

This would be better achieved with a less-intense mixed-use zoning district, such as T2 Rural Center. 

4. Is required by changing conditions. 

Not applicable 

5. Is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the application, and 

is the appropriate zone and uses for the land. 

North of the site is the Cherokee Farms community which is compatible with this rezoning, with the 

exception of the issues stated in question 1. To the south and east of the property is a rural residential 

community that is not comparable to the requested T4HCO district.   

65

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 3 of 9 

 

6. Would not adversely impact nearby lands. 

There is a rural residential community centered around Caravan Road and Franklin Drive that adjoin 

this site to the south and west. These communities have the potential to be adversely impacted by 

future development on this site, especially if it is built out at full capacity.   

7. Would result in a logical and orderly development pattern. 

See discussion under items 5 and 6. 

8. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment – including, but not limited to, 

water, air, noise, storm water management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the natural 

functioning of the environment.  

Environmental impacts are minimal. The proposed rezoning affects 6.26 acres, of which roughly 40% 

is already disturbed.  Any future development would need meet the County’s natural resources 

protection and stormwater requirements. 

9. Would result in development that is adequately served by public facilities (e.g. streets, potable 

water, sewerage, storm water management, solid waste collection and disposal, schools, parks, 

police, and fire and emergency facilities)  

The site is currently served by public sewer and water. The Burton Fire District Station #5 is located 

nearby at the entrance to Habersham.  Since residential density is limited to two dwelling units per 

acre, impacts on the school district are minimal. 

 

D. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends approval. This parcel has the potential to serve the Habersham/Cherokee Farms 

community with supporting businesses that may not be appropriate in the existing Market Street main 

street commercial district.   

 

E. BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  

The Beaufort County Planning Commission reviewed this rezoning at their November 1 meeting. At that 

time, a motion to recommend approval of the rezoning failed to pass with two voting for and three voting 

against. 

 

F. METROPOLITAN PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  

The Metropolitan Planning Commission reviewed this rezoning at their December 20 meeting. At that 

time they unanimously recommended approval of this rezoning. 

 

G. ATTACHMENTS: 

 Attachment A:  Existing and Proposed Zoning Map (ZDSO) 

 Attachment B:  Habersham/Cherokee Farms Community  

 Attachment C:  Concept Plan A 

 Attachment D:  Concept Plan B 

 Attachment E:  MCAS Beaufort Letter  

66

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

67

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 5 of 9 

 

  

68

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 6 of 9 

 

  

ATTACHMENT C 

69

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 7 of 9 

 

ATTACHMENT D 

70

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 8 of 9 

 

 

   

ATTACHMENT E 

71

Item 8.



ZMA 2021-06 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning Page 9 of 9 

 

 

72

Item 8.



Agenda Item 8 – Cherokee Farms Rezoning

73

Item 8.



Owner/Applicant: FTB Real Estate Co, LLC
Property Location: Cherokee Farms Road approx. 600 

feet from the entrance of 
Habersham

District/Map/Parcel: R100 027 000 0387 0000
Property Size: 6.26 acres
Current Future Land Use
Designation: Urban Mixed-Use and AICUZ
Current Zoning District: T2 Rural
Proposed Zoning District: T4 Neighborhood Center (request 

changed by applicant to T4 Hamlet 
Center Open)

Zoning Map Amendment Request for 
6.26 Acres (R100 027 000 0387 0000) 
186 Cherokee Farms Road from T2 
Rural to T4 Neighborhood Center

74

Item 8.



75

Item 8.



76

Item 8.



77

Item 8.



78

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Sections A.2.40 (Permitted Activities), A.4.40 
(Permitted Activities), and A.5.40 (Permitted Activities) to revise the Lady’s Island Community Preservation, 
Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity Center, and Lady’s Island Professional Office districts to include short-
term rentals as a special use. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This text amendment to the Lady’s Island Community Preservation (LICP) district was considered by the Lady’s 
Island Community Preservation Committee at their November 15, 2021 meeting. At that time, the Committee 
was not opposed to the amendment.  
 
At their December 6, 2021 meeting, the Beaufort County Planning Commission voted seven (7) to two (2) to 
recommend approval of adding short-term rentals as a special use to the LICP, as well as adding the short-
term rental special use to the two remaining Lady’s Island CP districts, Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity 
Center (LINAC) and Lady’s Island Professional Office (LIPO).  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant seeks to revise the LICP, a Community Preservation district, to include short-term rentals as an 
allowable special use. The applicant owns 2 Blythewood Road, located in the LICP, and wishes to establish a 
short-term rental on the property. The property is currently residential. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. Staff additionally recommends adding the short-term rental special use to the 
two remaining Lady’s Island CP districts: LINAC and LIPO  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the proposed amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Sections A.2.40 
(Permitted Activities), A.4.40 (Permitted Activities), and A.5.40 (Permitted Activities) to revise the Lady’s Island 
Community Preservation, Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity Center, and Lady’s Island Professional Office 
districts to include short-term rentals as a special use. 

 
 

79

Item 9.



SEA ISLAND PKWY

SAMS POINT RD

MIDDLE RD

LADYS ISLAND DR

BAY ST

KING ST

HOLLY HALL RD

ME
RI

DI
AN

 R
D

DUKE ST

BR
IC

KY
AR

D 
PO

IN
T R

D 
S

PRINCE ST

LIT
TL

E C
APE

RS R
D

WA
RS

AW
 IS

LA
ND

 R
D

SUNSET BLVD

SPRINGFIELD RD

CA
RT

ER
ET

 S
T

WA
DE

 H
AM

PT
ON

 D
R

GREENE ST

MARSH DR

BRICKYARD POINT RD N

CH
UR

CH
 S

T

WE
ST

 S
T SC

OT
T S

T

NE
W 

ST

CH
AR

LE
S 

ST

BOUNDARY ST

LAFAYETTE ST

NE
WC

AS
TL

E 
ST

FIDDLER DR

LOST ISLAND RD

PIG
EO

N P
OI

NT
 R

D

PLEASANT POINT DR

TH
OM

AS
 S

UM
TE

R 
ST

CH
IN

AB
AC

K 
DR

WASHINGTON ST

SHEPPARD RD

GA
RD

NE
R 

DR

FAIRFIELD RD

EA
ST

 S
T

DOW RD

MOYD LN

ASHTON DR

SEA GULL DR

YOUMANS DR

HA
MA

R 
ST

CONGRESS ST

HEWLETT RD

TELFAIR DR

PARK AVE

CRAVEN ST

RO
DG

ER
S 

ST

BL
AD

EN
 S

T

WILSON DR

MO
NS

ON
 S

T

LITTLE CREEK RD

LE
MOYNE

DR

GAY DR

ALUMNI RD

EG
RE

T D
R

BUCK RD
ASHDALE DR

DOE DR

GANNET POINT RD

TUSCARORA AVE

BIRD FOOT RD

MAR
SH

 HA
WK D

R

FERRY DR

W
AL

NU
TH

ILL
ST

MA
TT

IS
 D

R

AS
HL

EY
 D

R

LUCY CREEK DR

MAJOR RDLUPO DR

LO
NG

 P
OI

NT
 D

R

MISES RD

AIRPORT CIR

SAGE DR
REEDS RD

FACULTY DR

BARNWELL DR

CELADON DR

CH
OW

AN
 CR

EE
K B

LF

THE HILL RD

WI
LM

IN
GT

ON
 S

T

RUE DU BOIS

PIN
E 

RU
N 

TR
L

MI
LT

ON
 W

AY

CO
UG

A R
D R

GROVE RD

CAMEROON DR

AUDUBON
RD

LAUDONNIERE ST

PATINA DR

CALHOUN ST

DISTANT ISLAND DR

TROTTERS LOOP

F&
B 

RD

COOSAW RIVER DR

AD
VE

NT
UR

E 
ST

MILLER DR E

GIBBS ISLAND DR

JAMES F BYRNES ST
RO

PE
R 

ST

PICKENS ST

MILLER DR W

ISLANDS CSWY

NEWPOINT RD

RIVERS CT

ARBOR VICTORY RD

PA
LM

ET
TO

 S
T

PU
RR

YS
BU

RG
 D

R

TIDAL WALK DR

SANDY LN

WIG
GI

NS
 RD

LO
NG

FIE
LD

DR

KINGS RD

DO
NN

A 
RD

BI
G 

AS
H 

LN

WALLACE RD

ALSTON RD

FERNSWOOD
LN

ROYAL PINES BLVD

AL
LIG

AT
OR

 A
LY

BR IAR
PATC

H LN

BRINDLEWOOD DR

SMOKETREE LN

FIG DR

SHORTS LANDING RD

FR
AN

CI
S 

MA
RI

ON
 C

IR

A TKINS BLF

JB LN

JASPER LN

HESTER LN

WA
LL

IN
G 

GR
OV

E 
RD

ROBIN DR

PA
RK

 W
AY

EMMONS ST

CL
UB

 R
D

SE
A BIS

CUIT
LN

ARDMORE AVE

CHLOE CT

SAMS WAY

VA
RS

ITY
 S

T

RENTY DR

GRANDE OAKS WAY

DOLLY LN

BEN
T OAK

RD

PAVILION DR

RO CK SPRINGS DR

SPANISH POINT DR

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK
 S

T

OA
KS

PL
AN

TA
T IO

N
RD

RU LN

GAZEBO DR

SH
ER

WOOD LN

BRICKMAN WAY

BL
YT

HE
WO

OD
RD

PLANTERS CIR

FR EE
MA

NS
DR

GA
TO

R 
LN

LAURENS ST

SOUT H BLF

MAYFAIR CT

HANCOCK ST

SURF DR

OY
ST

ER
 B

LU
FF

 DR

HAZEL F ARM RD

RO
BI

N 
WA

Y

GUMWOOD DR

STUART TOWN RD

MCKEE RD

JW LN

JO
HN

NY
 M

OR
RA

LL
 C

IR

SU
NRISE

 BLV
D

SUNSET OAKS DR

TH
OMAS

 AT
KIN

S R
D

PIN
CK

NE
Y 

ST

PORT REPUBLIC ST

KATELYNS WAY

BIG BEN LN

DOWNING DR

ST
EV

EN
S 

LN

CHIP PS
L N

RIVE
R DR

EL
IZA

 LN

FLYCATCHER LN

HOPWOOD
LN

DIANA LN

COLE DR

IN
LE

T R
D

JOHNSON LANDING
RD

L ISBON WAY

SINGLETON ELLIS RD

WE
BB

 W
AY

HA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 ST

FAMILIAL LN

LUCERNE AVE

AT
TA

WA
Y L

N

FORT LYTTLETON RD

HICKORY RD

GLEASONS LANDING DR

TU
CK

ER
 AV

E

SUNSET B LF

STELLATA LN

O LD BARN RD

HA
MI

LT
ON

 ST

ME
AG

AN
 D

R

WHITE DOGWOOD RD

POPE RD

LA CHERE ST

SWEET OLIVE DR

ONEAL RD

SA
MS

 PO
IN

T W
AY

SALICORNIA DR

SPARKLEBERR Y DR

WOODWARD AVE

SOUTHERN

MA
GN

OL
I A

DR

RED TIP RD

HOUSTON DR

OLD DISTANT ISLAND RD

MOCCASIN GAP

WOODS LN

COLONY GARDENS RD

BAJALA DR E

OY
ST

ER
 C

OV
E 

RD

SANGST ER
RD

WOODLAKE DR

TU
RT

LE
LN

LANIE DR

NORTH ST

MO
OD

Y
DR

RENELL RD

PIL
OT

 S
T

MO
RG

AN
RI

VE
R

DR
N

PALM POINT RD

BRICKYARD HILLS DR

CH
RI

ST
IN

E 
DR

BURCKMYER DR

TO
DD

DR

EU
ST

IS 
LA

ND
ING

 RD

PLEASANT PLACE DR

EAGLE ROY LN

FE
RG

US
ON

 D
R

DATAW DR

DO
CK

 B
UI

LD
ER

S D
R

MORRIS ST

DORE DR

FORT MARION RD

WI
ND

IN
G 

WA
Y

CHICKADEE
LN

MARY ELIZABETH DR

NA
IR

NE
 ST

BREEZE WAY

BAGGETT ST

DAISY LN

RUELLE DU BELLE

JA
DE

 ST

JA
ME

S 
GR

AN
T R

D

SAWG RASS DR

FL BROWN LN

MARQU IS W
A Y

TUXEDO DR

BLUFF RD

FINDERS LN

WI
LL

IA
M 

ST

HILDA AVE

BAYARD ST

OAK ISLAND RD

MEA
DO

W
BR

OO
K

FA
RM

RD

ME
RE

DI
TH

 LN

CEMETERY RD

GARDEN GROVE CT

GRANDIFLORA LN

RIVER HOUSE DR

WILLIE GARDNER RD

CO
VE

 R
D

SUNNY PL

YACH T CLUB DR

EGRET CT

SUTCLIFFE DR

FEDERAL ST

DAVID
WAYNE LN

WOODBINE DR

PHILLIPS ST

STARLIGHT LN

NATIONAL ST

MOULTRIE CT

ARUM CIR N

MARSH HARBOR DR

WINTHROP ST

CA
DA

GE
 LN

SH
IR

E 
DR

MEADOWBROOK DR S

RIVERVIE W
DR

CO
OS

AW
PO

IN
T B

LV
D

HA
YE

K 
ST

YO
RU

BA
 LN

CEDAR POINT DR

LA
KE

 C
T

OLIVER LN

AUDUSTA PL

HU
DS

ON DR

OCONNELL ST

FR
AS

ER
 S

T

RICHARD
DR

CAROLYN D R

BIG
L E

AF BN D

CELY LN

NA
JA

S D
R

ROYAL STAR DR

CAUSEY WAY

PRATT PROGENY DR

GOLDEN POND LN

RED OAK DR

KA
TY

 C
IR

NY
SS

A 
LN

WHITEHALL DR

ARUM CIR S

OL
EA

ND
ER

 D
R

WESTMINSTER PL

LADYS
W

ALK

PARK SQ
N

DEE DEE DR

KN
OL

LW
OO

D
LN

GREEN WINGED TEAL DR S

BETTER THAN EVER ST

STEVIC CT

SH
OR

T S
T

JOHN CALHOUN ST

STUART TOWN CT

S T J
AM

ES
CIR

ALFRED ALSTON CT

HARV E ST LN

DE
VE

AU
X R

D

SETTLERS CV

KN
IG

HT
 LN

ANCHORAGE DR

BRAEBURN LN

SIMMS ST

CHARLIE CV

BAJALA DR W

LOGEORGE LN

PARK SQ S

HAWTHORNE ST

PAUL MATHIS CV

LAKE PT

SH
AD

E T
REE

LN

NIGHTHAWK LN

FACTORY CREEK RD

SEA BREEZE WAY

CH
LO

ES
 W

AY

MR DOUG
LA

S
LN

HAMMY PATH

SHEPPARD RD W

MA
YB

ER
RY

 LN

J STEVENS PATH

MORGAN
RIVER

DR
S

CU
TH

BE
RT

 S
T

PRESCIENT AVE

SP
EC

TA
BL

E 
ST

CASANOVAS WAY

DARB Y
D R

WILDWO OD LN

PARTR IDGE C IR

PIG
LE

R 
CV

SKY CT

PATCHWORK LN

MI CK EY
D

L N

NEEDLERUSH CT

MCKNIGHT SR DR

OYSTER FACTORY RD

MARTHA ANN WAY

HIGH
P T

PE
YT

ON
S 

WA
Y

FLY WAY D R

CANDL EW
OOD

DR

GODFREY ST

TERRY LEE DR

WATERSIDE DR

RIVE RWIND DR

SECESSION DR

LOVEJOY ST

BLUE HERON CIR

CHEROKEE RD

C

ONCH PO INT LN

SP
AN

IS
H 

MO
SS

 D
R

ELTON LN

CHARLESFORT ST

MEADOWBROOK DR N

BELLEIS LE
FARM SDR

H ARBO RVIEW CIR

KEMM ERLI N LN

PURSLANE DR

HEYWARD FRIPP DR

MARY STUART LN

EL
IZA

BE
TH

 SA
MU

EL
 LN

SH ALLOWBR O OK LN

PURDY WAY

SHAWN DR

LUTHER & MARGIES LN

SHIPWRIGHT CT

TIDAL W A L K LN

SALT M ARSH CV

TAILWIND TRL

SIMONES WAY

TRONIE LN

GE
EC

HI
E R

D

PA
RK

 R
OW

PA
TR

IC IA CT

OGDE N
C T

BO
TA

NY

DR

OYSTER CATCHER RD

FO
LS

ON
 C

T

PEARL TABBY DR

EAGLE TRACE CT

SQUIRREL RUN

SINGLETON
DR

WILDERNES S DR W

BLADEN LN

BAY BREEZE LN

CROFUT LN

SH
AR

ISS
E W

AY

VENICE CT

REBECCAS WAY

WOOD DUCK LN

ISLAND BREEZE LN

OAKWOOD DR

SEABROOK PL

SP RI
NG

KNOB CIR

LAUREL HILL LN

FREDERICKA TAYLOR LN

RE ID CT

BROOMFIELD LN

SUSAN CT

PICCADILLY CIR

REDW O OD LN

LUCY CREEK FARM RD

BOBWHITE CT

TREASUR
ES

EN
D

L N

PA
UL

HE
YW

ARD DR

MULLET AL
Y

CATTAIL CT

SHALLOWFORD DOWNS

DE
VE

AU
X P

L

SANDEL LN

OLD FERRY CV

FACTORY CREEK CT

BLANCHE CT

JAMES G R EEN
LN

SHILOH CT

BLUE SKY LN

DOWITC
HE

R
C T

TOKEN
LN

UNITED NATIONS WAY

LO
GG

ER
HE

AD
 TR

L

HARBORVIEW DR

LADY LN

BLUE MOON LN

TA
YL

OR
 DR

MARIN ERS CT

DU
TC

HE
SS

 LN

LANDI NG
DR

NEW HORIZON DR
SHIPWRIGHT CIR

LAKE VISTA DR

VO
N 

HA
RT

EN
 S

T

CROWS NEST AVE

COTTAGE WALK C IR

BEN & FLO SSIE DR

ME
LL

OW
 B

RE
EZ

E 
LN

BR
IC

KY
AR

D 
HI

LL
S 

CT

MARSHVIEW DR

SHELBY LN

CEDAR
CR

EST CIR

PLUM T REE LN

STAR MA G NOLIA
CT

OL
D 

CO
MM

ON
S L

N

WATERFORD CT

SIMONES WAY S

HIDDEN CT

BI
G 

LA
UR

EL
 D

R

CO
RD

AT
A 

CT

BEAU CIR

LE MOYNE CT

FOUR WIND S AVE

PR
OF

ES
SI

ON
AL

 D
R

FRANCES CT
WE

ST
 S

T E
XT

NORTH ST

GODFREY ST

ALSTON RD

HA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 ST

TUXE

D O DR

CAMEROON

D R

SPANISH POINT DR

GE
EC

HI
E R

D

PEARL TABBY DR

µ

0 0.3 0.6 0.9Miles

Zoning Districts
FBCode

Lady's Is. Community Preservation District [LICPD]
Lady's Is. Expanded Home Business District [LIEHBD]
Lady's Is. Neighborhood Activity Center [LINAC]
Lady's Is. Professional Office District [LIPOD]

The information and images contained on this map are for 
viewing and informational purposes only. Although much of the data

 is compiled from official sources, it is not
 intended to be used as such. Please contact the Beaufort County

 Planning Office for official information.

Beaufort County Development Code
Adopted December 8, 2014

Lady's Island
Zoning Map

Prepared by Beaufort County GIS Division
Map Generated January 5, 2021

80

Item 9.



1 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Beaufort County Natural Resources Committee 

Juliana Smith, Long Range Planner, Planning and Zoning Department 

Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Sections A.2.40 
(Permitted Activities), A.4.40 (Permitted Activities), and A.5.40 (Permitted 
Activities) to revise the Lady’s Island Community Preservation, Lady’s Island 
Neighborhood Activity Center, and Lady’s Island Professional Office districts to 
include short-term rentals as a special use.  
February 7, 2022 

STAFF REPORT: 

Case No. CDPA-000015-2021 
Owner/Applicant: Ralph McCarter 
Proposed Text Change: Text Amendment to the Community Development Code 

(CDC): Section A.2.40 (Permitted Activities) to revise the 
Lady’s Island Community Preservation district to include 
short-term rentals as a special use. 

A. SUMMARY OF APPLICANT’S REQUEST: The applicant seeks to revise the Lady’s
Island Community Preservation (LICP) district to include short-term rentals as an allowable
special use. The applicant owns 2 Blythewood Road, located in the LICP, and wishes to establish
a short-term rental on the property. The property is currently residential with a single-family
detached dwelling on site.
B. SUMMARY OF STAFF’S ADDITION: During, the December 6, 2021 Beaufort County
Planning Commission meeting, staff recommended short-term rentals also be added as a special
use to the two remaining Lady’s Island Community Preservation districts: Lady’s Island
Neighborhood Activity Center (LINAC) and the Lady’s Island Professional Office (LIPO). The
LINAC and LIPO districts are the two least restrictive and most intensive Lady’s Island
Community Preservation districts. Staff feels it is appropriate to add short-term rentals as a
special use to these two additional districts if short-term rentals are added as a special use to the
LIEHB and the LICP, which are the most restrictive Lady’s Island Community Preservation
districts.
C. SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT:  The applicant’s proposed amendment
currently under consideration would permit short-term rentals as a special use in the LICP,
LINAC, and LIPO. The purpose of the LICP, a residential district, is to maintain or improve the
livability and character of existing residential neighborhoods. It is the express purpose of this
district to exclude all commercial buildings and structures, whether operated for profit or
otherwise, except home uses specifically provided for, if they conform with the provisions

81

Item 9.



Division A.2, A.4, A.5 – LICP, LINAC, & LIPO Districts

2 

provided in Section A.2.40, or commercial uses permitted in Traditional Community Plans. 
Currently, two lodging uses are allowed within Traditional Community Plans in the LICP: Bed 
and Breakfast (5 rooms or less) and Inn (up to 24 rooms).  

The LICP is located only on Lady’s Island covering largely residential areas and neighborhoods 
including, but not limited to, Burckmeyer Beach, Captain Blythewood Landings, Tradewinds 
Plantation, the waterfront on Sunset Boulevard, Celadon, Brindlewood, Academy Estates, 
Magnolia Court, Deer Run, Royal Pines, Telfair, Christine Place, and Spanish Moss (see 
attached map). Current conditions in the LICP are primarily residential with the exception of the 
Beaufort Yacht Club, a veterinary clinic, Marsh Harbor Boat Works, and several home 
occupation businesses.  
Per Ordinance 2020-32, robust short-term rental standards were established in the Community 
Development Code. At the time of adoption, the short-term rental use was added as a special use 
to all transect zones except T1 Natural Preserve. It is a permitted use in conventional zones 
except C3 Neighborhood Mixed Use, where it is a special use. It is not allowed in S1 Industrial. 
The special use was not added to any of the Community Preservation districts; however, it is 
being considered for the Lady’s Island Expanded Home Business District (LIEHB).  The LICP 
district is similar to primarily residential transect zone districts, like T3 Edge, T3 Hamlet 
Neighborhood, and T3 Neighborhood, that allow short-term rentals.  
Considering the intent of the LICP and its consistency with primarily residential transect zones 
that allow short-term rentals as a special use, the addition of a short-term rental special use to the 
LICP is appropriate.  
During their November 15, 2021 meeting, the Lady’s Island Community Preservation 
Committee reviewed the proposed amendment to the LICP to include short-term rentals as a 
special use and were not opposed. If adopted, any property owner in the LICP seeking to use the 
short-term rental use will have to apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals for approval.  

D. TEXT AMENDMENT REVIEW STANDARDS: In determining whether to adopt or deny
a proposed Text Amendment, the County Council shall weigh the relevance of and consider
whether, and the extent to which, the proposed amendment:

1. Is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan;
The proposed text amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, which

envisions this district’s area to be Neighborhood Mixed Use. 
2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of

Ordinances; 
The LICP is primarily a residential district with intentions of maintaining or improving

the livability and character of existing residential neighborhoods, encouraging infill of available 
lands, providing a choice of housing types, and accommodating housing types which relate well 
with existing neighborhood character, scale, and density. Commercial buildings and structures 
are expressly excluded, except for some select home uses and for Traditional Community Plans. 
Only limited non-residential uses are allowed and are generally subject to the special use 
process. If adopted, the short-term rental use would only be allowed through a special use 
process.  

3. Is required by changed conditions;
Per Ordinance 2020-32, short-term rental standards were established as a special use in

82

Item 9.



Division A.2, A.4, A.5 – LICP, LINAC, & LIPO Districts

3 

the Community Development Code within transect and conventional zones. These standards 
were not added to Community Preservation Districts, though the Lady’s Island Expanded Home 
Business District is currently being considered for inclusion of the short-term rental use.  

4. Addresses a demonstrated community need;
N/A

5. Is consistent with the purpose and intent of the zones in this Development Code, or
would improve compatibility among uses and ensure efficient development within the 
County;  

See 2 above. 
6. Would result in logical and orderly development pattern;

As a special use, each applicant seeking to establish a short-term rental property in the
LICP will be required to apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals for approval. Upon application, 
their property will be posted and neighboring property owners will be notified of the application 
so they may weigh in. In addition to typical considerations, the Zoning Board of Appeals 
(ZBOA) may also establish an appropriate rental limit as a condition of approval after 
conducting the public hearing and finding that conditions exist making such a limitation 
necessary for short-term rental applications.  

7. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment, including but not
limited to water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the 
natural functioning of the environment;  

See 6 above. 

E. RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval. Staff also recommends that short-
term rentals be added as a special use to the two remaining Lady’s Island Community 
Preservation districts, which are both mixed-use districts and are consistent with transect zones 
that already include the use:  Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity Center and Lady’s Island 
Professional Office

F. BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: At the 
December 6, 2021 meeting of the Beaufort County Planning Commission, the Commission voted 
seven (7) to two (2) to recommend approval of adding short-term rentals as a special use to the 
Lady’s Island Community Preservation, Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity Center, and Lady’s 
Island Professional Office districts.

G. ATTACHMENTS:
• Map of LICP, LINAC, LIPO districts.
• Revised LICP, LINAC, LIPO district use tables.

83

Item 9.



SEA ISLAND PKWY

SAMS POINT RD

MIDDLE RD

LADYS ISLAND DR

BAY ST

KING ST

HOLLY HALL RD

ME
RI

DI
AN

 R
D

DUKE ST

BR
IC

KY
AR

D 
PO

IN
T R

D 
S

PRINCE ST

LIT
TL

E C
APE

RS R
D

WA
RS

AW
 IS

LA
ND

 R
D

SUNSET BLVD

SPRINGFIELD RD

CA
RT

ER
ET

 S
T

WA
DE

 H
AM

PT
ON

 D
R

GREENE ST

MARSH DR

BRICKYARD POINT RD N

CH
UR

CH
 S

T

WE
ST

 S
T SC

OT
T S

T

NE
W 

ST

CH
AR

LE
S 

ST

BOUNDARY ST

LAFAYETTE ST

NE
WC

AS
TL

E 
ST

FIDDLER DR

LOST ISLAND RD

PIG
EO

N P
OI

NT
 R

D

PLEASANT POINT DR

TH
OM

AS
 S

UM
TE

R 
ST

CH
IN

AB
AC

K 
DR

WASHINGTON ST

SHEPPARD RD

GA
RD

NE
R 

DR

FAIRFIELD RD

EA
ST

 S
T

DOW RD

MOYD LN

ASHTON DR

SEA GULL DR

YOUMANS DR

HA
MA

R 
ST

CONGRESS ST

HEWLETT RD

TELFAIR DR

PARK AVE

CRAVEN ST

RO
DG

ER
S 

ST

BL
AD

EN
 S

T

WILSON DR

MO
NS

ON
 S

T

LITTLE CREEK RD

LE
MOYNE

DR

GAY DR

ALUMNI RD

EG
RE

T D
R

BUCK RD
ASHDALE DR

DOE DR

GANNET POINT RD

TUSCARORA AVE

BIRD FOOT RD

MAR
SH

 HA
WK D

R

FERRY DR

W
AL

NU
TH

ILL
ST

MA
TT

IS
 D

R

AS
HL

EY
 D

R

LUCY CREEK DR

MAJOR RDLUPO DR

LO
NG

 P
OI

NT
 D

R

MISES RD

AIRPORT CIR

SAGE DR
REEDS RD

FACULTY DR

BARNWELL DR

CELADON DR

CH
OW

AN
 CR

EE
K B

LF

THE HILL RD

WI
LM

IN
GT

ON
 S

T

RUE DU BOIS

PIN
E 

RU
N 

TR
L

MI
LT

ON
 W

AY

CO
UG

A R
D R

GROVE RD

CAMEROON DR

AUDUBON
RD

LAUDONNIERE ST

PATINA DR

CALHOUN ST

DISTANT ISLAND DR

TROTTERS LOOP

F&
B 

RD

COOSAW RIVER DR

AD
VE

NT
UR

E 
ST

MILLER DR E

GIBBS ISLAND DR

JAMES F BYRNES ST
RO

PE
R 

ST

PICKENS ST

MILLER DR W

ISLANDS CSWY

NEWPOINT RD

RIVERS CT

ARBOR VICTORY RD

PA
LM

ET
TO

 S
T

PU
RR

YS
BU

RG
 D

R

TIDAL WALK DR

SANDY LN

WIG
GI

NS
 RD

LO
NG

FIE
LD

DR

KINGS RD

DO
NN

A 
RD

BI
G 

AS
H 

LN

WALLACE RD

ALSTON RD

FERNSWOOD
LN

ROYAL PINES BLVD

AL
LIG

AT
OR

 A
LY

BR IAR
PATC

H LN

BRINDLEWOOD DR

SMOKETREE LN

FIG DR

SHORTS LANDING RD

FR
AN

CI
S 

MA
RI

ON
 C

IR

A TKINS BLF

JB LN

JASPER LN

HESTER LN

WA
LL

IN
G 

GR
OV

E 
RD

ROBIN DR

PA
RK

 W
AY

EMMONS ST

CL
UB

 R
D

SE
A BIS

CUIT
LN

ARDMORE AVE

CHLOE CT

SAMS WAY

VA
RS

ITY
 S

T

RENTY DR

GRANDE OAKS WAY

DOLLY LN

BEN
T OAK

RD

PAVILION DR

RO CK SPRINGS DR

SPANISH POINT DR

ME
AD

OW
LA

RK
 S

T

OA
KS

PL
AN

TA
T IO

N
RD

RU LN

GAZEBO DR

SH
ER

WOOD LN

BRICKMAN WAY

BL
YT

HE
WO

OD
RD

PLANTERS CIR

FR EE
MA

NS
DR

GA
TO

R 
LN

LAURENS ST

SOUT H BLF

MAYFAIR CT

HANCOCK ST

SURF DR

OY
ST

ER
 B

LU
FF

 DR

HAZEL F ARM RD

RO
BI

N 
WA

Y

GUMWOOD DR

STUART TOWN RD

MCKEE RD

JW LN

JO
HN

NY
 M

OR
RA

LL
 C

IR

SU
NRISE

 BLV
D

SUNSET OAKS DR

TH
OMAS

 AT
KIN

S R
D

PIN
CK

NE
Y 

ST

PORT REPUBLIC ST

KATELYNS WAY

BIG BEN LN

DOWNING DR

ST
EV

EN
S 

LN

CHIP PS
L N

RIVE
R DR

EL
IZA

 LN

FLYCATCHER LN

HOPWOOD
LN

DIANA LN

COLE DR

IN
LE

T R
D

JOHNSON LANDING
RD

L ISBON WAY

SINGLETON ELLIS RD

WE
BB

 W
AY

HA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 ST

FAMILIAL LN

LUCERNE AVE

AT
TA

WA
Y L

N

FORT LYTTLETON RD

HICKORY RD

GLEASONS LANDING DR

TU
CK

ER
 AV

E

SUNSET B LF

STELLATA LN

O LD BARN RD

HA
MI

LT
ON

 ST

ME
AG

AN
 D

R

WHITE DOGWOOD RD

POPE RD

LA CHERE ST

SWEET OLIVE DR

ONEAL RD

SA
MS

 PO
IN

T W
AY

SALICORNIA DR

SPARKLEBERR Y DR

WOODWARD AVE

SOUTHERN

MA
GN

OL
I A

DR

RED TIP RD

HOUSTON DR

OLD DISTANT ISLAND RD

MOCCASIN GAP

WOODS LN

COLONY GARDENS RD

BAJALA DR E

OY
ST

ER
 C

OV
E 

RD

SANGST ER
RD

WOODLAKE DR

TU
RT

LE
LN

LANIE DR

NORTH ST

MO
OD

Y
DR

RENELL RD

PIL
OT

 S
T

MO
RG

AN
RI

VE
R

DR
N

PALM POINT RD

BRICKYARD HILLS DR

CH
RI

ST
IN

E 
DR

BURCKMYER DR

TO
DD

DR

EU
ST

IS 
LA

ND
ING

 RD

PLEASANT PLACE DR

EAGLE ROY LN

FE
RG

US
ON

 D
R

DATAW DR

DO
CK

 B
UI

LD
ER

S D
R

MORRIS ST

DORE DR

FORT MARION RD

WI
ND

IN
G 

WA
Y

CHICKADEE
LN

MARY ELIZABETH DR

NA
IR

NE
 ST

BREEZE WAY

BAGGETT ST

DAISY LN

RUELLE DU BELLE

JA
DE

 ST

JA
ME

S 
GR

AN
T R

D

SAWG RASS DR

FL BROWN LN

MARQU IS W
A Y

TUXEDO DR

BLUFF RD

FINDERS LN

WI
LL

IA
M 

ST

HILDA AVE

BAYARD ST

OAK ISLAND RD

MEA
DO

W
BR

OO
K

FA
RM

RD

ME
RE

DI
TH

 LN

CEMETERY RD

GARDEN GROVE CT

GRANDIFLORA LN

RIVER HOUSE DR

WILLIE GARDNER RD

CO
VE

 R
D

SUNNY PL

YACH T CLUB DR

EGRET CT

SUTCLIFFE DR

FEDERAL ST

DAVID
WAYNE LN

WOODBINE DR

PHILLIPS ST

STARLIGHT LN

NATIONAL ST

MOULTRIE CT

ARUM CIR N

MARSH HARBOR DR

WINTHROP ST

CA
DA

GE
 LN

SH
IR

E 
DR

MEADOWBROOK DR S

RIVERVIE W
DR

CO
OS

AW
PO

IN
T B

LV
D

HA
YE

K 
ST

YO
RU

BA
 LN

CEDAR POINT DR

LA
KE

 C
T

OLIVER LN

AUDUSTA PL

HU
DS

ON DR

OCONNELL ST

FR
AS

ER
 S

T

RICHARD
DR

CAROLYN D R

BIG
L E

AF BN D

CELY LN

NA
JA

S D
R

ROYAL STAR DR

CAUSEY WAY

PRATT PROGENY DR

GOLDEN POND LN

RED OAK DR

KA
TY

 C
IR

NY
SS

A 
LN

WHITEHALL DR

ARUM CIR S

OL
EA

ND
ER

 D
R

WESTMINSTER PL

LADYS
W

ALK

PARK SQ
N

DEE DEE DR

KN
OL

LW
OO

D
LN

GREEN WINGED TEAL DR S

BETTER THAN EVER ST

STEVIC CT

SH
OR

T S
T

JOHN CALHOUN ST

STUART TOWN CT

S T J
AM

ES
CIR

ALFRED ALSTON CT

HARV E ST LN

DE
VE

AU
X R

D

SETTLERS CV

KN
IG

HT
 LN

ANCHORAGE DR

BRAEBURN LN

SIMMS ST

CHARLIE CV

BAJALA DR W

LOGEORGE LN

PARK SQ S

HAWTHORNE ST

PAUL MATHIS CV

LAKE PT

SH
AD

E T
REE

LN

NIGHTHAWK LN

FACTORY CREEK RD

SEA BREEZE WAY

CH
LO

ES
 W

AY

MR DOUG
LA

S
LN

HAMMY PATH

SHEPPARD RD W

MA
YB

ER
RY

 LN

J STEVENS PATH

MORGAN
RIVER

DR
S

CU
TH

BE
RT

 S
T

PRESCIENT AVE

SP
EC

TA
BL

E 
ST

CASANOVAS WAY

DARB Y
D R

WILDWO OD LN

PARTR IDGE C IR

PIG
LE

R 
CV

SKY CT

PATCHWORK LN

MI CK EY
D

L N

NEEDLERUSH CT

MCKNIGHT SR DR

OYSTER FACTORY RD

MARTHA ANN WAY

HIGH
P T

PE
YT

ON
S 

WA
Y

FLY WAY D R

CANDL EW
OOD

DR

GODFREY ST

TERRY LEE DR

WATERSIDE DR

RIVE RWIND DR

SECESSION DR

LOVEJOY ST

BLUE HERON CIR

CHEROKEE RD

C

ONCH PO INT LN

SP
AN

IS
H 

MO
SS

 D
R

ELTON LN

CHARLESFORT ST

MEADOWBROOK DR N

BELLEIS LE
FARM SDR

H ARBO RVIEW CIR

KEMM ERLI N LN

PURSLANE DR

HEYWARD FRIPP DR

MARY STUART LN

EL
IZA

BE
TH

 SA
MU

EL
 LN

SH ALLOWBR O OK LN

PURDY WAY

SHAWN DR

LUTHER & MARGIES LN

SHIPWRIGHT CT

TIDAL W A L K LN

SALT M ARSH CV

TAILWIND TRL

SIMONES WAY

TRONIE LN

GE
EC

HI
E R

D

PA
RK

 R
OW

PA
TR

IC IA CT

OGDE N
C T

BO
TA

NY

DR

OYSTER CATCHER RD

FO
LS

ON
 C

T

PEARL TABBY DR

EAGLE TRACE CT

SQUIRREL RUN

SINGLETON
DR

WILDERNES S DR W

BLADEN LN

BAY BREEZE LN

CROFUT LN

SH
AR

ISS
E W

AY

VENICE CT

REBECCAS WAY

WOOD DUCK LN

ISLAND BREEZE LN

OAKWOOD DR

SEABROOK PL

SP RI
NG

KNOB CIR

LAUREL HILL LN

FREDERICKA TAYLOR LN

RE ID CT

BROOMFIELD LN

SUSAN CT

PICCADILLY CIR

REDW O OD LN

LUCY CREEK FARM RD

BOBWHITE CT

TREASUR
ES

EN
D

L N

PA
UL

HE
YW

ARD DR

MULLET AL
Y

CATTAIL CT

SHALLOWFORD DOWNS

DE
VE

AU
X P

L

SANDEL LN

OLD FERRY CV

FACTORY CREEK CT

BLANCHE CT

JAMES G R EEN
LN

SHILOH CT

BLUE SKY LN

DOWITC
HE

R
C T

TOKEN
LN

UNITED NATIONS WAY

LO
GG

ER
HE

AD
 TR

L

HARBORVIEW DR

LADY LN

BLUE MOON LN

TA
YL

OR
 DR

MARIN ERS CT

DU
TC

HE
SS

 LN

LANDI NG
DR

NEW HORIZON DR
SHIPWRIGHT CIR

LAKE VISTA DR

VO
N 

HA
RT

EN
 S

T

CROWS NEST AVE

COTTAGE WALK C IR

BEN & FLO SSIE DR

ME
LL

OW
 B

RE
EZ

E 
LN

BR
IC

KY
AR

D 
HI

LL
S 

CT

MARSHVIEW DR

SHELBY LN

CEDAR
CR

EST CIR

PLUM T REE LN

STAR MA G NOLIA
CT

OL
D 

CO
MM

ON
S L

N

WATERFORD CT

SIMONES WAY S

HIDDEN CT

BI
G 

LA
UR

EL
 D

R

CO
RD

AT
A 

CT

BEAU CIR

LE MOYNE CT

FOUR WIND S AVE

PR
OF

ES
SI

ON
AL

 D
R

FRANCES CT
WE

ST
 S

T E
XT

NORTH ST

GODFREY ST

ALSTON RD

HA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 ST

TUXE

D O DR

CAMEROON

D R

SPANISH POINT DR

GE
EC

HI
E R

D

PEARL TABBY DR

µ

0 0.3 0.6 0.9
Miles

Zoning Districts
FBCode

Lady's Is. Community Preservation District [LICPD]

Lady's Is. Expanded Home Business District [LIEHBD]

Lady's Is. Neighborhood Activity Center [LINAC]

Lady's Is. Professional Office District [LIPOD]

The information and images contained on this map are for 
viewing and informational purposes only. Although much of the data

 is compiled from official sources, it is not
 intended to be used as such. Please contact the Beaufort County

 Planning Office for official information.

Beaufort County Development Code
Adopted December 8, 2014

Lady's Island
Zoning Map

Prepared by Beaufort County GIS Division
Map Generated January 5, 2021

84

Item 9.



A.2.40 - Permitted Activities

The permitted uses are primarily residential. Limited nonresidential uses are allowed generally subject to 
the special use process. Uses not listed are prohibited. The following are descriptions of permitted uses, 
permitted accessory uses and structures for the LICP District:  

Table A.2.40.A: Lady's Island Community Preservation Land Uses 

Land Use  Use Definition 
Use 
Permission 

Residential  

Single-family detached 
Detached dwelling unit intended for only one family. Includes any one family dwelling 
unit, which complies with the Beaufort County Building Code.  

C  

Single-family cluster  
Two or more single-family detached residential uses in a subdivision, or on an individual 
lot that include, as part of the subdivision or lot design, significant common open space 
that meets the standards in Article 2, Division 2.8.  

C  

Traditional Community 
Plan  

See Article 2, Division 2.3 (Traditional Community Plans)  C  

Multifamily  
A building containing two or more dwelling units, specifically permitting duplexes, 
mansion apartments, and apartment houses.  

C  

Accessory dwelling unit 

A second dwelling unit, clearly subordinate to the principal unit, either in or added to an 
existing single-family detached dwelling, or in a separate accessory structure on the same 
lot as the main dwelling, for use as a complete independent living facility. Maximum 
building size shall not exceed 50% of the principal unit's floor area.  

C 

Family compound 

Form of traditional rural development which provides affordable housing for family 
members allowing additional family dwelling units on, and/or subdivisions of, a single lot 
owned by the same family for at least 50 years (see Article 2, Section 2.7.40).  

C 

Group home 
Residential facility for nine or fewer mentally or physically handicapped persons providing 
care on a 24-hour basis and licensed by a state agency or department, or is under contract 
with a state agency or department, for that purpose.  

C  

Home occupation 
A business, profession, occupation or trade located entirely within a residential dwelling, 
which does not change the essential character of the residential use.  

C  

Home business 

A business operated out of a single-family residence and accessory structures that permits 
the employment of up to three unrelated individuals. This includes independent 
contractors operating from the facility. Farm workers are not included. Uses shall be 
limited to office and service types, carpentry, upholstery, woodworking, potteries, 
glasswork and other similar uses; wholesale or retail sales are prohibited on-premises.  

C  

Lady's Island Community Preservation District

85

Item 9.



Community Residence 
(dorms, convents, assisted 
living, temporary shelters)  

See definition in Article 8, Table 3.1.70  S  

Offices and Services  

Day care, family  

A facility in a private home that is operated by one or more persons duly licensed or 
qualified to be licensed by the state for the purpose of providing child day care for one to 
not more than eight children at any one time, who are not relatives of the day care 
provider. (NAICS 62441)  

p  

Lodging: Short-Term 
Housing Rental (STHR) 

A property with a residential dwelling where lodging is offered, advertised, or provided to 
Short-Term Rental Tenants (excluding family members) for a fee or any form of 
compensation with individual rental terms not exceeding 29 consecutive days. See specific 
use regulations in Article 4.1.360 

S 

Recreation, Education, Safety, Public Assembly  

Public services  
These uses include emergency service, buildings, or garages, (e.g., ambulance, fire, police, 
rescue, and public works) or other garages or areas where vehicles are stored and 
dispatched. (NAICS 62191, 92212, 92216, see "Office" uses, below)  

P  

Religious establishments 
(large)  

Establishments engaged in operating religious organizations, such as churches, religious 
temples and /or establishments primarily engaged in administering an organized religion 
or promoting religious activities with or without schools (except Sunday schools occupying 
no more than 50% of the floor area) as part of the complex and having 15,000 or greater 
square feet of floor area (NAICS 813110).  

S  

Religious establishments 
(small)  

Establishments engaged in operating religious organizations, such as churches, religious 
temples and /or establishments primarily engaged in administering an organized religion 
or promoting religious activities with no schools (except Sunday schools occupying no 
more than 50% of the floor area) as part of the complex and having less than 15,000 
square feet of floor area.  

S  

Local utility 
Utility substations or transmission and local distribution facilities, including telephone, and 
all government-owned utilities. Not included are generation facilities, storage of 
combustibles, regional facilities, and landfills or mining operations. (NAICS 221122, 22121)  

S  

Outdoor recreation 

1. Active recreational activities and supporting services including, but not limited to: 
jogging, cycling, tot lots, playing fields, playgrounds, outdoor swimming pools, and tennis
courts (NAICS 7113); fishing clubs; marinas. 
2. Passive recreational uses including, but not limited to: arboretums, wildlife sanctuaries,
forests, areas for hiking, nature areas, and other passive recreation-oriented parks 
3. Picnic areas, garden plots, and beaches.

C  

Schools, neighborhood 
(elementary and middle 
school) and community 
(high schools)  

Institutions of learning or instruction primarily catering to minors, whether public or 
private, which are licensed by either the county or the State of South Carolina. The 
definition includes nursery schools, kindergarten, elementary schools, middle schools, 
senior high schools or any special institution of learning under the jurisdiction of the state 

S  

86

Item 9.

https://library.municode.com/sc/beaufort_county/codes/community_development_code?nodeId=ART4SPUS_DIV4.1SPUS_4.1.360SHRMRE


department of education catering to those age groups. This does not include charm 
schools, dancing schools, music schools or similar limited schools. (NAICS 6111)  

Infrastructure, Transportation, Communications  

Commercial 
communications towers  

A tower, pole or similar structure, which supports a telecommunications antenna, 
operated for commercial purposes above ground in a fixed location, freestanding or 
guyed, or atop a structure. This does not include television antennas or satellite dishes. 
Towers for radio or television station use are regulated as regional utilities.  

S  

Temporary Uses  

Construction staging or 
plant  

A concrete or asphalt batch plant, or metal forming and cutting facility assembled on the 
site or located no more than one mile from the site where the construction of a particular 
road, infrastructure or building is to take place. Such facilities shall be removed within one 
year.  

S  

Contractor's office  
Security guard buildings and structures, construction equipment sheds, contractor's 
trailers and similar uses incidental to a construction project. Limited sleeping and/or 
cooking facilities may also be permitted.  

P  

Model homes sales office A dwelling unit or modular unit in a subdivision used as a sales office for that subdivision. P  

Traditional Community Plan Uses  

Single-Family attached  
A structure containing one dwelling unit on a single lot and connected along a property 
line to another dwelling unit on an adjoining lot by a common wall or other integral part 
of the principal building such as a breezeway or carport.  

TCP  

Live/Work 

An integrated housing unit and working space, occupied and utilized by a single household 
in a structure that has been designed or structurally modified to accommodate joint 
residential occupancy and work activity, and which includes: complete kitchen, living, and 
sleeping space and sanitary facilities in compliance with the Building Code, and working 
space reserved for and regularly used by one or more occupants of the unit. Workspace is 
limited to a maximum fifty percent (50%) of the structure and located on the first floor 
with living space located to the rear or above. Activities are limited to those uses 
permitted in the underlying Zone in which the Live/Work unit is located.  

TCP  

General Retail 3,500 SF or 
less  

Stores and shops that sell and/or rent goods and merchandise to the general public. This 
category does not include "Open Air Retail," "Vehicle Sales and Rental," or "Gas 
Stations/Fuel Sales."  

TCP  

Gas Stations/Fuel Sales  
An establishment where petroleum products are dispensed for retail sale. This use may 
include a retail convenience store and/or a single bay carwash. It does not include towing, 
vehicle body or engine repair (see "Vehicle Services"), or overnight vehicle storage.  

TCP  

Restaurant, Café, Coffee 
Shop  

A retail business selling ready-to-eat food and/or beverages for on- or off-premise 
consumption. These include eating establishments where customers are served from a 
walk-up ordering counter for either on- or off-premise consumption; and establishments 

TCP  

87

Item 9.



where customers are served food at their tables for on-premise consumption, which may 
also provide food for take-out, but does not include drive-through services, which are 
separately defined and regulated. This use includes all mobile kitchens.  

General Offices & Services: 
3,500 SF or less  

1. Bank/Financial Services. Financial institutions, including, but not limited to: banks,
credit agencies, investment companies, security and commodity exchanges, ATM facilities.
2. Business Services. Establishments providing direct services to consumers, including, but
not limited to: employment agencies, insurance agent offices, real estate offices, travel 
agencies, landscaping and tree removal companies, exterminators, carpet cleaners, and 
contractors' offices without exterior storage. 
3. Business Support Services. Establishments providing services to other businesses, 
including, but not limited to: computer rental and repair, copying, quick printing, mailing 
and mailbox services. 
4. Personal Services. Establishments providing non-medical services to individuals, 
including, but not limited to: barber and beauty shops, dry cleaners, small appliance 
repair, laundromats, massage therapists, pet grooming with no boarding, shoe repair
shops, tanning salons, funeral homes. These uses may include incidental retails sales 
related to the services they provide. 
5. Professional and Administrative Services. Office-type facilities occupied by businesses
or agencies that provide professional or government services, or are engaged in the 
production of intellectual property.

TCP  

Animal Services: 
Clinic/Hospital 

An establishment used by a veterinarian where animals are treated. This use may include 
boarding and grooming as accessory uses.  

TCP  

Day Care: Commercial 
Center (9 or more clients)  

A state-licensed facility that provides non-medical care and supervision for more than 8 
adults or children, typically for periods of less than 24 hours per day for any client. 
Facilities include, but are not limited to: nursery schools, preschools, after-school care 
facilities, and daycare centers.  

TCP  

Lodging: Bed & Breakfast (5 
rooms or less)  

The use of a single residential structure for commercial lodging purposes, with up to 5 
guest rooms used for the lodging of transient guests and in which meals may be prepared 
for them, provided that no meals may be sold to persons other than such guests, and 
where the owner resides on the property as his/her principal place of residence.  

TCP  

Lodging: Bed & Breakfast (5 
rooms or less)  

The use of a single residential structure for commercial lodging purposes, with up to 5 
guest rooms used for the purpose of lodging transient guests and in which meals may be 
prepared for them, provided that no meals may be sold to persons other than such guests, 
and where the owner resides on the property as his/her principal place of residence.  

TCP  

Lodging: Inn (up to 24 
rooms)  

A building or group of buildings used as a commercial lodging establishment having up to 
24 guest rooms providing lodging accommodations to the general public. This includes the 
use of any dwelling unit for lodging accommodations on a daily or weekly rate to the 
general public.  

TCP  

Medical Service: 
Clinics/Offices  

See definition in Article 8, Table 3.1.70  TCP  

88

Item 9.



Community Oriented 
Cultural Facility (less than 
15,000 SF)  

Public or non-profit facilities that provide educational and cultural experiences for the 
general public, examples of which include: aquariums, arboretums, art galleries, botanical 
gardens, libraries, museums, planetariums, civic centers and theaters predominantly used 
for live performances, and zoos. May also include accessory retail uses such as a gift/book 
shop, restaurant, etc.  

TCP  

Community Residence 
(dorms, convents, assisted 
living, temporary shelters)  

See definition in Article 8, Table 3.1.70  TCP  

"P" indicates a Use that is Permitted By Right.  
"C" indicates a Use that is Permitted with Conditions.  
"S" indicates a Use that is Permitted as a Special Use.  
"TCP" indicates a Use that is permitted only as part of a Traditional Community Plan under the requirements in Division 2.3 

89

Item 9.



A.4.40 - Permitted Activities

The permitted uses are listed in Table A.3.40. A use not listed in Table A.3.40 may be permitted by the 
Director provided it is determined to be substantially similar to a listed use and complies with the purpose 
established for the LINAC District. All other uses are prohibited.  

Table A.4.40.A: Lady's Island Neighborhood Activity Center Land Uses 

Land Use  Use Definition 
Use 
Permission 

Residential  

Commercial Apartment  One to four dwelling units located above a nonresidential structure on the same lot. P  

Live/Work Unit 
An integrated housing unit and working space, occupies by a single household. Commercial 
activities are limited to those listed in this table.  

P  

Retail & Restaurants  

General Retail  
Stores and shops that sell and/or rent goods and merchandise to the general public. Outdoor 
sales as a principal use is not permitted.  

P  

Delicatessens and 
restaurants  

Establishment that serves food and beverages to persons seated within the building. Outside 
terrace or sidewalk seating is permitted subject to all other required codes. This use is limited 
to a seating capacity of 40 and does not include drive through service. Restaurants may have 
outdoor cafes on sidewalks or in courtyards.  

C  

Food stores  
Establishments primarily engaged in retailing a general line of food, such as canned and 
frozen food; fresh fruits and vegetables; and fresh and prepared meats, fish, and poultry. 
Food stores are limited to 20,000 square feet.  

C  

Gas-convenience marts 
with no repair bays or 
facilities  

There is no towing, vehicle body, engine repair, painting, or exterior overnight vehicle storage 
permitted with this use. Single-bay car washes associated with a gas convenience mart are 
permitted (NAICS 811191, 811192).  

C  

Retail plant nurseries  

Establishments primarily engaged in retailing nursery and garden products, such as trees, 
shrubs, plants, seeds, bulbs, and sod that are predominantly grown elsewhere. These 
establishments may sell a limited amount of products they grow themselves. Outside storage 
is limited to plants (NAICS 444220).  

P  

Offices & Services  

Animal Services  Establishments primarily engaged in providing grooming, boarding, and veterinarian services. P  

Banks  
Establishments primarily engaged in accepting demand and other deposits and making 
commercial, industrial, and consumer loans.  

P  

Lady's Island Neighborhood Activity Center District

90

Item 9.



Business and 
Professional services  

This use encompasses activities, without outdoor storage needs, that provide office and 
service functions to customers and other businesses.  

P  

Day care, commercial  
All day care facilities not classified as "day care, family" and including more than eight 
children (NAICS 62441).  

P  

Lodging: Short-Term 
Housing Rental (STHR) 

A property with a residential dwelling where lodging is offered, advertised, or provided to 
Short-Term Rental Tenants (excluding family members) for a fee or any form of compensation 
with individual rental terms not exceeding 29 consecutive days. See specific use regulations in 
Article 4.1.360. 

S 

Dry-cleaning and 
laundry services  

Establishments primarily engaged in operating facilities with coin operated or similar self-
service laundry and dry-cleaning equipment or establishments engaged in providing dry-
cleaning services, except linen, uniform, carpets and upholstery (NAICS 812310 and 812320).  

P  

Personal service 
establishments  

Establishments such as barber and beauty shops that provide appearance care services to 
individuals (NAICS 8121).  

P  

Quick service oil, tune-
up, brake and muffler 
shops  

Where maintenance repairs are made in fully enclosed bays, and where such repairs are 
typically completed in less than two hours.  

C  

Recreation, Education, Safety, Public Assembly  

Residential storage 
facility  

A building or buildings consisting of individual, small, self-contained units that are leased or 
owned for the storage of household goods.  

C  

Government offices  
This use is comprised of establishments primarily engaged in law enforcement, traffic safety, 
and fire protection (NAICS 92215 and 92216).  

P  

Religious 
establishments (small)  

Establishments engaged in operating religious organizations, such as churches, religious 
temples and /or establishments primarily engaged in administering an organized religion or 
promoting religious activities with no schools (except Sunday schools occupying no more than 
50% of the floor area) as part of the complex and having less than 15,000 square feet of floor 
area.  

C  

Industrial  

Boat storage  
This use is comprised of establishments primarily engaged in renting or leasing outdoor space 
for boat storage. These establishments provide secure space where clients can store and 
retrieve their boats.  

C  

Business storage  
Any land or structure used for storage and holding of commercial business supplies, 
materials, equipment and products, that are necessary for conducting that business.  

C  

Light manufacturing, 
processing and 
packaging  

A facility accommodating the assembly, fabrication, and conversion of already processed raw 
materials into products. Examples include artisan/craft product manufacturing, clothing and 

C  

91

Item 9.

https://library.municode.com/sc/beaufort_county/codes/community_development_code?nodeId=ART4SPUS_DIV4.1SPUS_4.1.360SHRMRE


fabric product manufacturing, furniture and fixtures manufacturing, cabinet shops, media 
production, printing and publishing, and food preparation and packing.  

"P" indicates a Use that is Permitted By Right.  
"C" indicates a Use that is Permitted with Conditions. 
"S" indicates a Use that is Permitted as a Special Use.  

92

Item 9.



A.5.40 - Permitted Activities

The permitted uses are restricted to professional office, services, institutional and limited business uses. 
Uses not listed are prohibited. The following are descriptions of permitted uses, permitted accessory uses 
and structures for LIPO:  

Table A.5.40: Lady's Island Professional Office District Land Use 

Land Use  Use Definition 
Use 
Permission 

Residential  

Family compound 
Form of traditional rural development which provides affordable housing for family 
members allowing additional family dwelling units on, and/or subdivisions of, a single lot 
owned by the same family for at least 50 years.  

P  

Accessory dwelling unit 

A second dwelling unit, clearly subordinate to the principal unit, either in or added to an 
existing single-family detached dwelling, or in a separate accessory structure on the same lot 
as the main dwelling, for use as a complete, independent living facility. Maximum building 
size shall not exceed 50% of the principal unit's floor area.  

C  

Offices and Services  

Office  

Building or buildings wherein operations are predominantly administrative, professional or 
clerical, and includes the following:  
1. Finance, banks, trusts, savings and lending. (NAICS 521, 522, 525, 533)
2. Security, commodity brokers and investment services. (NAICS 523)
3. Insurance carriers, agents, brokers, and services. (NAICS 524)
4. Real estate services. (NAICS 531)
5. Professional and technical services. (NAICS 5411-5419)
6. Business services. (NAICS 55, 5611-5616, 5619, 8139)
7. Health services. (NAICS 621)
8. Social services. (NAICS 624) (except care facilities)
9. Educational services, such as business schools (NAICS 6114), technological, and trade 
schools (excluding public and private schools defined as institutional). 
10. Civic and social organizations. (NAICS 8132-34)
11. Agricultural support and services (offices only). (NAICS 115)
12. Governmental offices (NAICS 92 excluding public service).
13. Contractor's office without exterior storage.

P  

Services  

A wide variety of personal and commercial services including the following:  
1. Educational services. (NAICS 611 except 611512, 61162)
2. Social assistance. (NAICS 624)
3. Hospitals and medical laboratories (NAICS 339116, 62151, 62211, 62221, 62231), 
including general medical and surgical hospitals, and specialty hospitals, except alcoholism,
drug, rehabilitation. 
4. Kennel service and domestic veterinary clinics. (NAICS 11521)
5. Postal service buildings, except regional distribution centers, couriers and messengers.
(NAICS 491, 492) 
6. Miscellaneous repair services and shops. (NAICS 44311, 8112, 8113, 8114)

P  

Lady's Island Professional Office District

93

Item 9.



7. Health and exercise clubs; dance studios. (NAICS 71394, 71399)  
8. Funeral homes. (NAICS 81221)  
9. Laundry services. (NAICS 8123)  
10. Personal services. (NAICS 8121, 8129)  

Day care, commercial  
All day care facilities not classified as "day care, family" and including more than eight 
children. (NAICS 62441)  

P  

Lodging: Short-Term 
Housing Rental (STHR) 

A property with a residential dwelling where lodging is offered, advertised, or provided to 
Short-Term Rental Tenants (excluding family members) for a fee or any form of 
compensation with individual rental terms not exceeding 29 consecutive days. See specific 
use regulations in Article 4.1.360. 

S 

General auto repair & 
gasoline service stations 
w/ repair bays or 
facilities  

Facilities where most types of servicing and repair can be performed on-site. Hand car 
wash/detailing businesses are permitted as part of, or separate from this use.  

C  

Government office  
County, state, or federal office buildings or other facilities that are primarily devoted to 
public office uses or services. (NAICS 921, 92211, 92213, 923)  

P  

Quick service oil, tune-
up, brake and muffler 
shops  

Where maintenance repairs are made in fully enclosed bays, and where such repairs are 
typically completed in less than two hours.  

C  

Recreation, Education, Safety, Public Assembly  

Institutional Residential  

1. Convents or monasteries.  
2. Skilled nursing facility. Twenty-four hour care to ill persons in a controlled setting 
providing daily and medical care. Residents often have limited or no mobility. Requires 
licensing.  
3. Assisted living facility. Residential care facility catering to the frail elderly who require 
assistance with daily activities. Requires licensing.  
4. Independent living facility. Facility catering to more mobile, healthy senior adults. 
Individual living units may contain kitchens, while common dining is available. Planned 
recreation, housekeeping, transportation, etc may also be provided. Does not require 
licensing.  
5. Sheltered care facilities or group living facilities where the residents live in an institutional 
environment and are generally under the care or control of staff. All sheltered care, group 
care, and group homes, except emergency shelters and residential substance abuse facilities 
where total occupancy is more than eight, shall be considered institutional residential use. 
These residents would be members of an institution, have institutional care, or would be 
treated by staff in an institutional setting rather than living independently. (NAICS 623, 
62422, 62423)  
6. Institutional housing where there is commercial rental or condominium ownership 
combined with any of the following: common food service, nursing, or health care. Assisted 
living facilities shall also be included. (NAISC 623311, 6239, 624229)  
7. Dormitories, fraternities, or sororities.  
8. Schools with live-in facilities on site, other than universities, colleges or preparatory 
schools. (NAICS 61111)  

C  

94

Item 9.

https://library.municode.com/sc/beaufort_county/codes/community_development_code?nodeId=ART4SPUS_DIV4.1SPUS_4.1.360SHRMRE


Religious establishments 
(small)  

Establishments engaged in operating religious organizations, such as churches, religious 
temples and /or establishments primarily engaged in administering an organized religion or 
promoting religious activities with no schools (except Sunday schools occupying no more 
than 50% of the floor area) as part of the complex and having less than 15,000 square feet of 
floor area.  

P  

Religious establishments 
(large)  

Establishments engaged in operating religious organizations, such as churches, religious 
temples and /or establishments primarily engaged in administering an organized religion or 
promoting religious activities with or without schools (except Sunday schools occupying no 
more than 50% of the floor area) as part of the complex and having 15,000 or greater square 
feet of floor area. (NAICS 813110)  

S  

Recreational institutional  Nonprofit organizations chartered to provide community-based recreational services.  P  

Commercial amusement, 
indoor  

Includes, but is not limited to: bowling alleys, indoor sports arenas, movie theaters, 
performing arts companies, indoor skating rinks (ice or roller), amusement game machine 
complex, pool halls, and shooting arcades. (NAICS 512131, 7111, 7112 part, 7113, 712 part, 
713 part)  

C  

Colleges and 
professional schools  

Colleges, universities, and professional schools; other advanced education. (NAICS 6112, 
6113)  

C  

Schools, neighborhood 
(elementary and middle 
school)  

Institutions of learning or instruction primarily catering to minors, whether public or private, 
which are licensed by either the county or the State of South Carolina. The definition 
includes nursery schools, kindergarten, elementary schools, middle schools or any special 
institution of learning under the jurisdiction of the State Department of Education catering 
to those age groups. This does not include charm schools, dancing schools, music schools or 
similar limited schools.  

C  

Public services  
These uses include emergency service, buildings, or garages, (e.g., ambulance, fire, police, 
rescue, and public works) or other garages or areas where vehicles are stored and 
dispatched. (NAICS 62191, 92212, 92216, see "Office" uses, below)  

P  

Infrastructure, Transportation, Communications  

Local utility  
Utility substations or transmission and local distribution facilities, including telephone, and 
all government-owned utilities. Not included are generation facilities, storage of 
combustibles, regional facilities, and landfills or mining operations. (NAICS 221122, 22121)  

C  

Temporary Uses  

Construction staging or 
plant  

A concrete or asphalt batch plant, or metal forming and cutting facility assembled on the site 
or located no more than mile from the site where the construction of a particular road, 
infrastructure or building is to take place. Such facilities shall be removed within one year.  

S  

Contractor's office  
Security guard buildings and structures, construction equipment sheds, contractor's trailers 
and similar uses incidental to a construction project. Limited sleeping and/or cooking 
facilities may also be permitted.  

P  

95

Item 9.



Roadside stands  
Temporary structure used in the sale of agricultural produce, flowers or seafood. More than 
one vendor may sell at a single stand. All roadside stands must comply with the standards in 
Article 4, Section 4.3.100  

C  

"P" indicates a Use that is Permitted By Right.  
"C" indicates a Use that is Permitted with Conditions.  
"S" indicates a Use that is Permitted as a Special Use.  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

96

Item 9.



ORDINANCE 2022/________ 

 

TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE (CDC): 

SECTIONS A.2.40 (PERMITTED ACTIVITIES), A.4.40 (PERMITTED ACTIVITIES), 

A.5.40 (PERMITTED ACTIVITIES) TO REVISE THE LADY’S ISLAND COMMUNITY 

PRESERVATION, LADY’S ISLAND NEIGHBORHOOD ACTIVITY CENTER, AND 

LADY’S ISLAND PREOFESSIONAL OFFICE DISTRICTS TO INCLUDE SHORT-

TERM RENTALS AS A SPECIAL USE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Lady’s Island Community Preservation District, the Lady’s Island 

Neighborhood Activity Center, and the Lady’s Island Professional Office District currently do not permit 

short-term rentals; and 

WHEREAS, an applicant requested that the Lady’s Island Community Preservation District 

should allow short-term rentals as a special use; and staff recommended allowing short-term rentals as a 

special use in the Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity Center and the Lady’s Island Professional Office 

District as well; and  

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Planning Commission considered the proposed amendments 

on December 6, 2021, voting to recommend that County Council approve the proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, County Council now wishes to amend the Community Development Code to allow 

short-term rentals as a special use in the Lady’s Island Community Preservation District, the Lady’s 

Island Neighborhood Activity Center, and the Lady’s Island Professional Office District; 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly assembled as follows: 

1. The Community Development Code is amended to to allow short-term rentals as a special use in 

the Lady’s Island Community Preservation District, the Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity 

Center, and the Lady’s Island Professional Office District; 

2. Staff is directed to make the changes to the Community Development Code and to report to all 

persons necessary or helpful that the zoning has so changed. 

 

Ordained this ___ day of ______________, 2022 

  

       _________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

___________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

 

97

Item 9.



 
  

98

Item 9.



 

 

  

99

Item 9.



 

 

  

100

Item 9.



 

 

  

101

Item 9.



 

 

  

102

Item 9.



 

 

  

103

Item 9.



 

 

  

104

Item 9.



 

 

  

105

Item 9.



 

  

106

Item 9.



 

  

107

Item 9.



 

  

108

Item 9.



 

109

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 6.55 acres (R600 041 000 0172 0000) at 28 Buckingham 
Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet Center Open to T4 Neighborhood Center 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning 

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This rezoning application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their December 6, 2021 
meeting. At that time the Commission voted seven (7) to two (2) to recommend approval of the proposed 
amendment to County Council. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant seeks to change the zoning of a 6.55-acre lot at 28 Buckingham Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet 
Center Open (T4HC-O) to T4 Neighborhood Center (T4NC) (see attached map). The property is undeveloped. 
The applicant also owns the adjacent property to the west, which is zoned T4NC. The applicant plans to 
develop a mixed-use community using both properties and is seeking consistent zoning to avoid a split-zoning. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the zoning amendment for 28 Buckingham Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet Center Open 
to T4 Neighborhood Center. 

 
 

110

Item 10.



CDPA-000016-2021 – 28 Buckingham Plantation Dr Zoning Amendment – T4HC-O to C3NMU  Page 1 of 5 

TO: Beaufort County Natural Resources Committee 

FROM: Juliana Smith, Long Range Planner, Planning and Zoning Department 

DATE: February 7, 2022 

SUBJECT: Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 6.55 acres (R600 041 000 0172 0000) at 
28 Buckingham Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet Center Open (T4HC-O) to T4 
Neighborhood Center (T4NC); Applicant: Carmen Mihai  

STAFF REPORT: 

A. BACKGROUND:

Case No.   CDPA-000016-2021 

Owner/Applicant:  Carmen Mihai 

Property Location:  Located at 28 Buckingham Plantation Drive 

District/Map/Parcel: R600 041 000 0172 0000 

Property Size:  6.55 acres 

Current Future Land Use 
Designation:   Urban Mixed Use  

Current Zoning District:  T4 Hamlet Center Open 

Proposed Zoning District: T4 Neighborhood Center 

B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The applicant seeks to change the zoning of a 6.55-acre lot at 28
Buckingham Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet Center Open (T4HC-O) to T4 Neighborhood Center
(T4NC) (see attached map). The property is undeveloped and fronts Bluffton Parkway. The applicant
also owns the neighboring 5.44-acre property (R600 040 000 0825 0000) to the northwest, which is
zoned T4 Neighborhood Center. The applicant plans to develop a mixed-use community using both
parcels and is seeking consistent zoning to avoid a split-zoning.

C. EXISTING ZONING: The lot is currently zoned T4HC-O, which is a Sub-Zone of T4 Hamlet
Center. T4 Hamlet Center is intended to integrate appropriate, medium-density residential building
types in an environment conducive to walking and bicycling. It is a zoning district that is appropriate
for more rural areas. The TCHC-O Sub-Zone provides for neighborhoods with a broader amount of
retail and service uses in the scale and character of the T4 Hamlet Center zone.

MEMORANDUM 

111

Item 10.



CDPA-000016-2021 – 28 Buckingham Plantation Dr Zoning Amendment – T4HC-O to C3NMU  Page 2 of 5 

D. PROPOSED ZONING: The T4NC district is intended to integrate vibrant main-street commercial
and retail environments into neighborhoods, providing access to day-to-day amenities within walking
distance, creating potential for a transit stop, and serving as a focal point for the neighborhood. This
district is intended to create areas of higher intensity residential and commercial uses.

E. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP: This 6.55-acre lot is designated Urban
Mixed Use on the Future Land Use Map. The Comprehensive Plan states that future development in
Urban Mixed Use should be compatible with the type and mix of land use currently found in the
municipalities with an emphasis on infill and redevelopment, as well as walkable, mixed-use
communities. Gross residential densities are between two and four dwelling units per acre with some
denser pockets of development.

F. ZONING MAP AMENDMENT REVIEW STANDARDS:  In determining whether to adopt or
deny a proposed Zoning Map Amendment, the County Council shall weigh the relevance of and
consider whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment:

1. Is consistent with and furthers the goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan, and the
purposes of this Development Code;

The 2040 Comprehensive Plan designates this area as Urban Mixed Use. The development
concept proposed is consistent with this designation and achieves the comprehensive plan goal of
infill and redevelopment within Urban Mixed Use areas.

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of Ordinances;

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the neighboring parcel to the west, which is zoned T4
Neighborhood Center. The rezoning request is not in conflict with the Development Code or the
Code of Ordinances.

3. Addresses a demonstrated community need;

N/A.

4. Is required by changed conditions;

N/A.

5. Is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the
application, and is the appropriate zone and uses for the land;

Overall, this portion of the Bluffton Parkway corridor is a mixed-use corridor including
multifamily and commercial uses on the northern side of Bluffton parkway, and undeveloped land
abutting the Old South PUD on the southern side of Bluffton parkway. The property to the south
of the applicant’s property is the Old South golf course included in an existing PUD. The
properties directly across Bluffton Parkway are primarily comprised of the Edgewater apartment
complex, zoned T4 Hamlet Center Open. On either side of Edgewater are C5 Regional Center
Mixed-Use zoning districts comprised of commercial uses such as Tanger Outlets to the west and

112

Item 10.



CDPA-000016-2021 – 28 Buckingham Plantation Dr Zoning Amendment – T4HC-O to C3NMU  Page 3 of 5 

a variety of shops, restaurants, and services uses to the east. The proposed rezoning is consistent 
with the surrounding land.  

6. Would not adversely affect nearby lands;

This rezoning would be consistent with the character of nearby lands and would not adversely
affect them.

7. Would result in a logical and orderly development pattern;
See 5 and 6 above.

8. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment – including, but not limited
to, water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the
natural functioning of the environment:

Any development on the site would be required to adhere to the natural resource protection, tree
protection, wetland protection, and stormwater standards in the Community Development Code
and the Stormwater BMP Manual.

9. Would result in development that is adequately served by public facilities (e.g. streets,
potable water, sewerage, stormwater management, solid waste collection and disposal,
schools, parks, police, and fire and emergency medical facilities):

Water and sewer are available to service the property. Per the applicant’s narrative, the property
will initially be served by septic systems with the intention to connect into sewer at “a future date
to be determined.” However, the applicant reported during the December 6, 2021 Planning
Commission meeting that the property would be directly connected to sewer without the use of
septic systems. EMS and Fire facilities are located within a half-mile of the site.

G. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The proposed zoning change from T4HCO to T4NC is consistent
with the Future Land Uses laid out in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan and the surrounding character of
the area. Staff recommends approval.

H. BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION: At the December 6, 2021 meeting of the
Beaufort County Planning Commission, the Commission voted seven (7) to two (2) to recommend
approval of the proposed zoning amendment.

I. ATTACHMENTS

• Zoning Map (existing and proposed)
• Location Map

113

Item 10.



PUD

T4HCO
C5RCMU

PUD

T4NC

FORDING ISLAND RD

BUCKINGHAM
PLA

NTA
TION DR

OLD SOUTH CT

BLUFFTON PKWY

SA
LT

MA
RS

H D
R

KELLIE CT

MOSS CREEK VLG

AN
OLYN

 CT

POINTE SOUTH TRCE

PAR
MEN

TER
 RD

EDGEW
ATE

R CIR

PINE BURR RD W

BASS CREEK LN

BLAC K WATCH
DR

P ENINSULA D R

WOODBRIDGE L
N

MOS
S CR

EE
K D

R

PINE BURR RD E

BLUFFTON PKWY

OLD SOUTH CTBUCKINGH
AM

PLA
NTATIO

N DR

SA
LT

MA
RS

H D
R

FORDING ISLAND RD

KELLIE CT

PAR
MEN

TER
 RD

AN
OLYN

 CT

MOSS CREEK VLG

PENINSULA D R

POINTE SOUTH TRCE

EDGEW
ATE

R CIR

PINE BURR RD W

BLAC K WATCH DR

BASS CREEK LN

MOSS
CR

EEK
DR

WOODBRIDGE L
N

PINE BURR RD E

ROYAL P O INTE DR

PUD

C5RCMU

T4HCO

T4NC
T2R

BLCP

Legend
R600 41 172

Zone Districts
FBCode

C5 Regional Center Mixed Use [C5RCMU]

Existing Planned Unit Development [PUD]

T4 Hamlet Center Open [T4HCO]

T4 Neighborhood Center [T4NC]

Existing Zoning

Proposed Zoning

Legend
R600 41 172

FBCode
C5 Regional Center Mixed Use [C5RCMU]

Existing Planned Unit Development [PUD]

T4 Hamlet Center Open [T4HCO]

T4 Neighborhood Center [T4NC]
114

Item 10.



CDPA-000016-2021 – 28 Buckingham Plantation Dr Zoning Amendment – T4HC-O to C3NMU  Page 5 of 5 

Location Map for 28 Buckingham Plantation Drive 

PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT 

115

Item 10.



ORDINANCE 2022/________ 

 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT/REZONING REQUEST FOR 6.55 ACRES (R600 041 000 0172 

0000) AT 28 BUCKINGHAM PLANTATION DRIVE FROM T4 HAMLET CENTER OPEN TO 

T4 NEIGHBORHOOD CENTER. 

WHEREAS, parcel ID number R600 041 000 0172 0000 is currently zoned as T4 Hamlet Center 

Open; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of the parcel has requested to change the zoning from T4 Hamlet Center 

Open to T4 Neighborhood Center; and  

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Planning Commission considered the request on December 6, 

2021, voting to recommend that County Council deny the request; and 

WHEREAS, County Council now wishes to amend the zoning map to change the parcel’s zoning 

from T4 Hamlet Center Open to T4 Neighborhood Center. 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly assembled as follows: 

1. The zoning map of the County is hereby amended to reflect the zoning of Parcel ID Number 

R600 041 000 0172 0000 as T4 Neighborhood Center 

2. Staff is directed to make the changes to the zoning map and to report to all persons necessary or 

helpful that the zoning has so changed. 

 

Ordained this ___ day of ______________, 2022 

  

       _________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

___________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 
  

116

Item 10.



 

 

117

Item 10.



Owner/Applicant: Carmen Mihai
Property Location: 28 Buckingham Plantation Drive
District/Map/Parcel: R600 041 000 0172 0000
Property Size: 6.55 acres
Current Future Land Use
Designation: Urban Mixed Use
Current Zoning District: T4 Hamlet Center Open
Proposed Zoning District: T4 Neighborhood Center
Planning Commission: Recommends Approval

Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning 
Request for 6.55 acres (R600 041 000 
0172 0000) at 28 Buckingham 
Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet Center 
Open to T4 Neighborhood Center

118

Item 10.



119

Item 10.



120

Item 10.



121

Item 10.



122

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Osprey Point (Mailind Bluff) Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan Amendment 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning  

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This rezoning application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their January 3, 2022 
meeting. At that time the Commission voted six (6) to one (1) to recommend denial of the proposed 
amendment to County Council. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant is requesting that a portion of the Osprey Point PUD master plan be amended.  The current PUD 
as amended in 2019 consists of 345 single-family residential units and 207,700 square feet of commercial 
development.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval with the following conditions: 

 The master plan should be revised to meet the Multi-Family Oriented Community standards in Article 2, 
Division 2.4 of the Community Development Code.  

 The Osprey Point PUD document should be revised to require that all multi-family dwelling units are 
affordable to individuals and families earning 80% or less of county median income. The affordable 
housing units should be required to meet the Affordable Housing requirements found in Article 4, Section 
4.1.350.G of the Community Development Code. 

 The existing Osprey Point PUD required the developer to dedicate a 0.5 acre parcel for public safety 
(Sheriff, Fire, EMS). The amended master plan does not show any land dedicated for this use. 

 The development agreement that accompanies the Osprey Point PUD needs to address the proposed 
changes to the master plan. The development agreement also needs to address any agreed upon 
affordable housing requirements. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the Osprey Point (Mailind Bluff) Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan 
Amendment. 

 

123

Item 11.



ORDINANCE 2022/________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OSPREY POINT (MAILIND BLUFF) 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER PLAN TO REPLACE 

207,700 SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL WITH 204 MULTI-FAMILY 

DWELLING UNITS. 

WHEREAS, the Osprey Point Planned Unit Development was approved by 

County Council on October 27, 2008, and amended in 2014 and 2019; and  

WHEREAS, the owner of the parcel has requested to amend the PUD to 

replace 207,700 square feet of commercial with 204 multi-family dwelling units on 

a parcel (R600 013 000 0006 0000) within the PUD; and 

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Planning Commission considered the 

request on January 3, 2022, and recommend denial of the rezoning; and 

WHEREAS, County Council now wishes to amend the PUD; 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly 

assembled as follows: 

1. The Osprey Point (Mailind Bluff) Planned Unit Development is amended to 

replace 207,700 square feet of commercial with 204 multi-family dwelling 

units on a parcel (R600 013 000 0006 0000) within the PUD; and  

2. Staff is directed to make the changes to the zoning map and to report to all 

persons necessary or helpful that the zoning has so changed. 

 

Ordained this ___ day of ______________, 2022 

       _________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

___________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

  

124

Item 11.



 

125

Item 11.



 

 

 

 
TO:  Natural Resources Committee of County Council 

FROM:  Robert Merchant, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning Director 

DATE:  January 21, 2022 

SUBJECT: Osprey Point (Mailind Bluff) Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan 
Amendment 

 

 
A. BACKGROUND: 
 
Owner:   LCP III, LLC (J. Nathan Duggins, III) 

Applicant:   Joshua Tiller, J.K. Tiller and Associates 

Property Location: On the east side of Okatie Highway (SC 170) at the intersection of 
Pritcher Point Road. 

District/Map/Parcel: R600-013-000-0006-0000 

Property Size:   17.2 acres 

 
B. SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  The applicant is requesting that a portion of the Osprey Point 

PUD master plan be amended.  The current PUD as amended in 2019 consists of 345 single-
family residential units and 207,700 square feet of commercial development. The 
residential portion of the Osprey Point PUD is a Pulte Homes development called Mailind 
bluff and currently under construction.  The applicant is proposing to amend the PUD 
master plan to replace the 207,000 square feet of commercial development that is 
proposed for the front 17.2 acres with 204 multi-family units.   

C. ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION:   

 Access: The site is accessed off of SC 170 by Pritcher Point Road located off of Highway 
170 across from Shortcut Road; and by Mailind Bluff Drive located across from Red Oaks 
Lane. A new road is proposed that runs parallel to SC 170 approximately 400 feet from 
the highway. That road is proposed to connect to Okatie Elementary located south of 
the site. The existing master plan shows a right-in/right-out intersection halfway 
between Pritcher Point and Mailind Bluff Roads. The revised master plan eliminates this 
access point. 

 Traffic Impacts: This master plan amendment does not trigger the need for a Traffic 
Impact Analysis. The revised site plan would result in a reduction of estimated peak hour 
trips.  A 207,700 would generate approximately 791 peak hour trips compare to 90 peak 
hour trips from 204 multi-family units. However, it is important to note removing the 
potential for commercial development would greatly reduce any internal trip capture 
for the 600+ homes in Mailind Bluff and River Oaks.  

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 
Community Development Department 

Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls Complex 
Administration Building, 100 Ribaut Road 

Post Office Drawer 1228, Beaufort, South Carolina  29901-1228  
Phone:  843-255-2410 / FAX:  843-255-9432 

 

 

 

126

Item 11.



Osprey Point PUD Master Plan Amendment – 01-03-22 Page 2 of 5 

 
D. SCHOOL IMPACTS:  The School District has been given a copy of this proposed master plan 

amendment. The School District does not have excess capacity to address the potential 
increase in the number of students in southern Beaufort County. In this immediate area, the 
District is already facing the need to absorb the students that will result from the 711 
dwelling units in River Oaks and Mailand Bluff. However, because the proposal consists of 
Low Income Tax Credit housing, the Superintendent and the Vice-Chair of the School Board 
have indicated support for the project. Staff will provide additional input from the School 
District at the January 3 meeting.  

 
E. ZONING MAP AMENDMENT REVIEW STANDARDS:  In determining whether to adopt or 

deny a proposed Zone Map Amendment, the County Council shall weigh the relevance of 
and consider whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment: 
1. Is consistent with and furthers the goals, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and 

the purposes of this Development Code: This proposed master plan change would 

potentially result in the provision of 204 affordable housing units, which meets the 

Comprehensive Plan strategy to “aggressively pursue the development of affordable 

housing.” Staff recommends that the Osprey Point PUD and accompanying development 

agreement require all multi-family units to be affordable to individuals or families 

earning 80% or less of county median income. 

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of 

Ordinances; The proposed master plan is not consistent with the Multi-Family Oriented 

Community standards found in Division 2.4 of the Community Development Code. These 

standards require multi-family developments to be oriented around a system of streets 

and blocks with parking located at the side or rear of buildings. While the Osprey Point 

PUD is currently not required to follow the development standards of Community 

Development Code, staff believes that any master plan amendment occurring after the 

adoption of the CDC should adhere to the standards of that ordinance to the greatest 

extent possible. 

3. Addresses a demonstrated community need: The applicant proposed to develop 

affordable housing on the site, which has been documented in the Comprehensive Plan 

and the Housing Needs Assessment to be a community need. 

4. Is required by changed conditions; N/A. 

5. Is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the 

application, and is the appropriate zone and uses for the land; The proposed multi-

family housing provides a better transition between Highway 170 and the single family 

development located at Mailind Bluff than 207,700 square feet of commercial 

development. 

6. Would not adversely affect nearby lands: See 5 above. 

7. Would result in a logical and orderly development pattern; See 5 and 6 above. 

8. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment – including, but not 

limited to, water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, 

127

Item 11.



Osprey Point PUD Master Plan Amendment – 01-03-22 Page 3 of 5 

and the natural functioning of the environment: Any development on the site would be 

required to adhere to the natural resource protection, tree protection, wetland 

protection, and stormwater standards in the Community Development Code and the 

Stormwater BMP Manual. The amount of proposed impervious surface is comparable to 

what the proposed commercial development would have yielded. 

9. Would result in development that is adequately served by public facilities (e..g. 

streets, potable water, sewerage, stormwater management, solid waste collection 

and disposal, schools, parks, police, and fire and emergency medical facilities): The site 

is in close proximity to pubic sewer and water, schools, fire and EMS. However, the 

nearest school, Okatie Elementary, is near capacity.  

F. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval with the following conditions: 

 The master plan should be revised to meet the Multi-Family Oriented Community 
standards in Article 2, Division 2.4 of the Community Development Code.  

 The Osprey Point PUD document should be revised to require that all multi-family 
dwelling units are affordable to individuals and families earning 80% or less of 
county median income. The affordable housing units should be required to meet the 
Affordable Housing requirements found in Article 4, Section 4.1.350.G of the 
Community Development Code. 

 The existing Osprey Point PUD required the developer to dedicate a 0.5 acre parcel 
for public safety (Sheriff, Fire, EMS). The amended master plan does not show any 
land dedicated for this use. 

 The development agreement that accompanies the Osprey Point PUD needs to 
address the proposed changes to the master plan. The development agreement also 
needs to address any agreed upon affordable housing requirements. 

 
G. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:  This PUD amendment was reviewed by the 

Beaufort County Planning Commission at their January 3, 2022 meeting. At that time, the 
Commission voted 6 to 1 to recommend denial of the PUD amendment. 

 
H. ATTACHMENTS: 

 Locational Map 

 Existing and Proposed Master Plan Map 

 Application 
  

128

Item 11.



Osprey Point PUD Master Plan Amendment – 01-03-22 Page 4 of 5 

 
 

PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
  

129

Item 11.



 

130

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
ITEM TITLE: 

Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 11.66 acres (R600 009 000 0030 0000) at 100 Rawstrom Drive 
from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Neighborhood 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee Meeting, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Robert Merchant, AICP, Director, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning  

(10 minutes needed for item discussion) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This rezoning application went before the Beaufort County Planning Commission at their January 3, 2022 
meeting. At that time the Commission voted six (6) to one (1) to recommend denial of the proposed 
amendment to County Council. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The applicant seeks to change the zoning of an 11.66-acre lot at 100 Rawstrom Drive from T2 Rural (T2R) to 
T2 Rural Neighborhood (T2RN) (see attached map). The property is currently the site of a detached single 
family home. The application packet includes a conceptual plan that proposes sub-dividing the property into 
six lots. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Not applicable 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The proposed zoning change from T2R to T2RN is in conflict with the Future Land Use designation laid out in 
the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. It is also in direct conflict with the Community Development Code. What’s 
more, if permitted, the proposed rezoning would create a precedent that is expressly in conflict with the code 
and would adversely affect any property in Beaufort County that is zoned T2R.  

Staff strongly recommends denial of the proposed zoning amendment. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

To approve or deny the zoning amendment for 100 Rawstrom Drive from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Neighborhood. 

 
 

131

Item 12.



CPDA-000018-2021 100 Rawstrom Drive Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RN Page 1 of 5 
 

 

TO:   Beaufort County Natural Resources Committee 

FROM:  Juliana Smith, Beaufort County Planning and Zoning Department 

DATE:  February 7, 2022 

SUBJECT:  Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 11.66 acres (R600 009 000 0030 0000) 
at 100 Rawstrom Drive from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Neighborhood; Applicant: Ben 
Kennedy  

 

STAFF REPORT: 

A.  BACKGROUND: 

 Case No.    CPDA-000018-2021 

Owner/Applicant:  Ben Kennedy 

Property Location:  Located at 100 Rawstrom Drive south of Okatie Highway 

District/Map/Parcel:  R600 009 000 0030 0000 

Property Size:  11.66 acres 

Current Future Land Use 
Designation:   Rural 

Current Zoning District:  T2 Rural 

Proposed Zoning District: T2 Rural Neighborhood 

B.  SUMMARY OF REQUEST: The applicant seeks to change the zoning of an 11.66-acre lot at 100 
Rawstrom Drive from T2 Rural (T2R) to T2 Rural Neighborhood (T2RN) (see attached map). The 
property is currently the site of a detached single family home. The application packet includes a 
conceptual plan that proposes sub-dividing the property into six lots.  

C. EXISTING ZONING: The lot is currently zoned T2R, which is intended to preserve the rural 
character of Beaufort County. This zone applies to areas that consist of sparsely settled lands in an 
open or cultivated state. It may include large lot residential, farms where animals are raised or crops 
are grown, parks, woodland, grasslands, trails, and open space areas. Residential development is 
permitted at a density of one (1) dwelling unit per three (3) acres. Under this zoning, three (3) 
dwelling units would be permitted on the applicant’s property. T2R also permits very limited non-
residential uses.  

MEMORANDUM 

132

Item 12.



CPDA-000018-2021 100 Rawstrom Drive Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RN Page 2 of 5 
 

D. PROPOSED ZONING: The T2 Rural Neighborhood (T2RN) district protects the residential 
character of existing communities and neighborhoods located in rural areas. It prevents existing 
clusters of communities and neighborhoods located in rural areas from becoming non-conforming, 
thereby giving rural small-lot property owners more flexibility with their land. Areas that are 
designated as T2RN consist of areas with five contiguous lots of five or fewer acres. This district is 
expressly not intended to promote tract development or to encourage rezoning. 

T2RN permits 1.2 dwelling units per acre. Under the proposed T2RN re-zoning, 13 dwelling units 
would be permitted on the applicant’s property.  

E.  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP: This 11.66-acre lot is designated Rural 
on the Future Land Use Map. The Comprehensive Plan states that these areas should retain their rural 
character with low-density residential development at one dwelling unit per three acres, while 
supporting small-scale commercial development and agricultural land uses.  

F.   ZONING MAP AMENDMENT REVIEW STANDARDS:  In determining whether to adopt or 
deny a proposed Zone Map Amendment, the County Council shall weigh the relevance of and 
consider whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment: 

1. Is consistent with and furthers the goals, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and the 
purposes of this Development Code;  
 
The Land Use chapter of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan indicates this area as Rural. Rural areas 
should retain their rural character with a residential dwelling density of one unit per three acres. 
The proposed rezoning is not consistent with the future land use designation.  
 

2. Is not in conflict with any provision of this Development Code, or the Code of Ordinances; 
 
While the property is located adjacent to properties currently zoned T2RN, the proposed rezoning 
is directly in conflict with the intent of the T2RN zoning district. T2RN is not intended to 
encourage tract development or rezonings. Instead, the T2RN zoning district is intended to 
provide already existing clustered communities in rural areas with land use flexibility. Areas 
appropriate for the T2RN zoning district are those that contain five contiguous lots of five or 
fewer acres. This property does not meet the conditions of the T2RN zoning district.  
 

3. Addresses a demonstrated community need;  
 
N/A. 
 

4. Is required by changed conditions;  
 
N/A. 
 

5. Is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding the land subject to the 
application, and is the appropriate zone and uses for the land;  
 
Current uses on surrounding properties are primarily rural residential and are zoned T2R and 
T2RN. The property also abuts the Rural and Critical Land property that protects the Altamaha 
Town Preserve Site, which is zoned T1NP. As a result, the proposed zoning would not conflict 

133

Item 12.



CPDA-000018-2021 100 Rawstrom Drive Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RN Page 3 of 5 
 

with the character of the surrounding areas. It does, however, conflict directly with the intent of 
the district as defined in the Development Code.   
 

6. Would not adversely affect nearby lands;  
 
If permitted, the proposed rezoning would create a precedent that is expressly in conflict with the 
code. As a result, it stands to adversely any property in Beaufort County that is zoned T2R.  
 

7. Would result in a logical and orderly development pattern; 
See 5 and 6 above. 
 

8. Would not result in adverse impacts on the natural environment – including, but not limited 
to, water, air, noise, stormwater management, wildlife, vegetation, wetlands, and the 
natural functioning of the environment:  
 
See 6 above. If permitted, the proposed rezoning would set a precedent opening any T2R property 
to an optional three-fold density increase. While any future development would be required to 
adhere to the natural resource protections, tree protections, wetland protections, and stormwater 
standards in the Community Development Code and Stormwater BMP Manual, the very nature of 
the dramatic density increase would have adverse impacts on the character and environment of 
rural areas.  
 

9. Would result in development that is adequately served by public facilities (e..g. streets, 
potable water, sewerage, stormwater management, solid waste collection and disposal, 
schools, parks, police, and fire and emergency medical facilities):  

The property is not served by sewer. Water lines are nearby and would serve any future 
development. EMS and Fire services are located three (3) miles from the property.  

G. STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The proposed zoning change from T2R to T2RN is in conflict 
with the Future Land Use designation laid out in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. It is also in direct 
conflict with the Community Development Code. What’s more, if permitted, the proposed rezoning 
would create a precedent that is expressly in conflict with the code and would adversely affect any 
property in Beaufort County that is zoned T2R.  

 Staff recommends denial of the proposed zoning amendment.  

H.  BEAUFORT COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION: At the January 3, 2022 meeting of the 
Beaufort County Planning Commission, the Commission voted six (6) to one (1) to recommend 
denial of the proposed zoning amendment.  

I.  ATTACHMENTS 

• Zoning Map (existing and proposed) 
• Location Map 

134

Item 12.



CPDA-000018-2021 100 Rawstrom Drive Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RN Page 4 of 5 
 

 

135

Item 12.



CPDA-000018-2021 100 Rawstrom Drive Zoning Amendment – T2R to T2RN Page 5 of 5 
 

 

PROPOSED 
AMENDMENT 

136

Item 12.



ORDINANCE 2022/________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF BEAUFORT 
COUNTY TO CHANGE PARCEL ID NUMBER R600 009 000 0030 0000 

FROM T2 RURAL TO T2 RURAL NEIGHBORHOOD 

WHEREAS, parcel ID number R600 009 000 0030 0000 is currently zoned 
as T2 Rural; and 

WHEREAS, the owner of the parcel has requested to change the zoning 
from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Neighborhood; and  

WHEREAS, the Beaufort County Planning Commission considered the 
request on January 3, 2022, voting to recommend that County Council deny the 
request; and 

WHEREAS, County Council now wishes to amend the zoning map to 
change the parcel’s zoning from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Neighborhood. 

NOW, THEREFORE be it ordained by County Council in meeting duly 
assembled as follows: 

1. The zoning map of the County is hereby amended to reflect the zoning of 
Parcel ID Number R600 009 000 0030 0000 as T2 Rural Neighborhood 

2. Staff is directed to make the changes to the zoning map and to report to all 
persons necessary or helpful that the zoning has so changed. 

Ordained this ___ day of ______________, 2022 

       _________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

___________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 

 

137

Item 12.



 

138

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO 
CONVEY A PORTION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R200 010 000 0170 0000 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resource Committee, February 7, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Stefanie M. Nagid, Passive Parks Manager and Brittany Ward, Deputy County Attorney (5 minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

New item for consideration 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

At the time of acquisition, the Pineview property and the adjacent vacant private residence were sharing the 
entry access drive. In 2021, the private residence was purchased by a new homeowner, who has requested to 
purchase the entry access drive from the County. County staff are in favor of this request to minimize 
private/public user conflicts and due to the planned relocation of the public access drive for the passive park. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Revenue to the County to be determined based on survey of entry access drive. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve the ordinance 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the ordinance as written. 

Motion to amend the ordinance. 

Motion to deny the ordinance. 

 

139

Item 13.



AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE 

NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY A PORTION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY 

BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R200 010 000 0170 0000 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (“County”) purchased real property and is the current fee simple 

owner of the real property known as Pineview Preserve with TMS No. R200 010 000 0170 0000 and being 

recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Beaufort County, South Carolina on February 7, 2020, 

in Book 3835 Pages 926-935; hereinafter referred to as the “Property”; and  

WHEREAS, the County purchased the Property through the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation 

Program for $27,613.05 per acre and intends to develop a public passive park on the Property; and 

WHEREAS, adjacent to the Property is the real property with TMS No. R200 010 000 0172 0000 

and is currently owned by David and Anne Bukovich (“Residents”); hereinafter the “Adjacent Property”; 

and  

WHEREAS, the County and Residents have been sharing an entry access drive, which is solely 

located on the Property, to both the Property and Adjacent Property; and  

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to provide the citizens and visitors of Beaufort County with public 

access to the Property in the most direct and accessible manner possible with no potential user conflicts; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Residents desire to purchase a portion of the Property to retain their existing 

private residence access to the Adjacent Property in the most direct and accessible manner possible with no 

potential user conflicts; and  

 

WHERAS, the Residents understand a survey will be used to determine the acreage of said entry 

access drive and the sale price will be proportional to the original per acre purchase price the County paid 

for the Property; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to convey the entry access drive to the Residents and retain 

temporary staff access until such time as the passive park is developed. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL, duly 

assembled, does hereby authorize the County Administrator to execute the necessary documents to convey 

a portion of property owned by Beaufort County with TMS No. R200 010 000 0170 0000 to David and 

Anne Bukovich, of which the proceeds will be returned to the Rural and Critical Lands Preservation 

Program land acquisition fund. 

 

Adopted this _____ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

       

      By: ______________________________________ 

       Joseph Passiment, Chairman  

140

Item 13.



 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

141

Item 13.



Pineview Preserve

New Entry 
Location

Portion to 
Convey

142

Item 13.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

DISCUSSION OF STORMWATER UTILITY FEES AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee – February 7th, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Brittany Ward – Deputy County Attorney    

Neil Desai, P.E - Public Works Director (Alternate) 

(10 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

February 25th, 2021 – City of Beaufort letter written 
March 3rd, 2021 – Town of Port Royal letter written 
 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Beaufort County Stormwater was contacted by the City of Beaufort and Town of Port Royal stating they were 
no longer interested in Beaufort County pursuing delinquent stormwater fees from the military installations. 
Public Works staff has been working internally with Legal and the County Administrator to discuss impacts 
and solutions between the Municipalities, the County, and the Military installations. In addition to 
amendments to the IGAs to adhere to MS4 Permit requirements, the County staff will need to amend IGAs 
with municipalities to update language clarifying the Utility will not seek delinquent fees specific to military 
installations.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

For discussion only. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

For discussion only. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

For discussion only. 

 

 

143

Item 14.



William A. Prokop 
CITY MANAGER 

843-525-7070 
FAX 843-525-7013 

 

 

 
CITY OF BEAUFORT 

1911 Boundary Street 
BEAUFORT, SOUTH CAROLINA 29902 

COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
Stephen Murray, Mayor 

Phillip Cromer, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold “Mitch” Mitchell 

Neil Lipsitz 

 

 

 

 

 

February 25th, 2021 
 

The Honorable Joseph Passiment 
Chairman, Beaufort County Council 
100 Ribaut Rd  
Beaufort, SC 29902 
 
Dear Chairman Passiment: 
 
This letter is provided as requested by your Interim Administrator, Eric Greenway. As 
discussed last week, the City of Beaufort was recently made aware that Beaufort 
County Council has retained an out of state law firm to pursue the collection of 
stormwater fees from the Department of Defense.  It is our understanding that Beaufort 
County Council is taking this action, ostensibly, on behalf of the City of Beaufort and the 
Town of Port Royal. The City of Beaufort does not support and does not desire to 
participate in any legal action against the Department of Defense.   
 
The City of Beaufort adopts this position for two major reasons.  First, the City 
possesses no evidence that any of the installation’s stormwater adversely affects or 
exacerbates flooding in the community. As you know, approximately three years ago the 
local municipalities teamed up to identify multijurisdictional flooding issues, and the 
areas surrounding the bases have never been identified as troubled areas.  Next, we 
enjoy an excellent relationship with each of the installations and believe that any 
challenges, either perceived or actual, may be resolved without leveraging attorneys 
and pursuing civil action against our military community.    
 
Please let me know if you have questions or would like to discuss this matter further.  
 
In Service,  
 
 
 
     Stephen D. Murray III, Mayor  

 
Cc:  Beaufort County Council & Eric Greenway, Interim Admin  
       Port Royal Town Council & Van Willis, Manager 
       Colonel Karl Arbogast, Commanding Officer MCAS Beaufort 
       Kim Fleming, Deputy Director, Operations, Plans, and External Affairs MCAS Bft. 
   

144

Item 14.



 
 
 
 
Council 
 
Joe DeVito 
Mayor 
 
Jerry Ashmore 
Mayor Pro Tempore 
 
Mary Beth Heyward 
Darryl Owens 
Kevin Phillips 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Van Willis 
Town Manager 
 
T. Alan Beach 
Chief of Police 
 
Jeffrey S. Coppinger 
Operations 
 
Linda Bridges 
Planning 
 

 

PO Drawer 9 • Port Royal, SC 29935-0009 • Telephone (843) 986-2200 • Fax (843) 986-2210 
www.portroyal.org 

March 3rd, 2021 
 
 

The Honorable Joseph Passiment 
Chairman, Beaufort County Council  
100 Ribaut Rd 
Beaufort, SC 29902 

 
 

Dear Chairman Passiment: 
 

The Town of Port Royal was recently made aware that Beaufort County Council has retained an out of 
state law firm to pursue the collection of stormwater fees from the Department of Defense. It is our 
understanding that Beaufort County Council is taking this action, superficially, on behalf of the City of 
Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal. The Town of Port Royal does not support and does not desire to 
participate in any legal action against the Department of Defense. 

 
The Town of Port Royal adopts this position for two reasons. First, the Town possesses no evidence that 
any of the installation’s stormwater adversely affects or exacerbates flooding in the community. Secondly, 
we do not understand what service we would be offering the installations.   
 
We enjoy an excellent relationship with each of the installations and believe that any challenges, either 
perceived or actual, may be resolved without leveraging attorneys and pursuing civil action against our 
military community. 

Please let me know if you have questions or would like to discuss this matter further.  

 

            __Joe DeVito_______ 

            Joe DeVito, Mayor 
 
 

Cc: Beaufort City Council & Bill Prokop, City Manager 
      Beaufort County Council & Eric Greenway, Interim Admin  

                 Colonel Riccoh Player, Commanding Officer HQSVCBN & TF Commitment 
     Kim Fleming, Deputy Director, Operations, Plans, and External Affairs MCAS Bft. 
     Brigadier General Julie L. Nethercot, Commanding General, Marine Corps Recruit Depot Parris Island 
     Captain Raymond R. Batz, Commanding Officer of Naval Hospital Beaufort 

145

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Resolution authorizing the County Administrator to 25k will be applied to a multi-day planning charette to 
develop design drawings and standards for the development/redevelopment of Lady’s Island . 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Natural Resources Committee on February 7th, 2022 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

County Administrator, Eric Greenway (10-15 min) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

IN 2019 the City and the County completed a land-use plan for Lady’s Island that involved an 
extensive public input and engagement process that established growth management tools that will 
ensure Lady’s Island develops appropriately if those tools are implemented and maintained in the 
future. This 2018 plan enhanced the previous investment that the County made into transportation 
planning for the island through two transportation studies conducted by Stantec. Recently, the 
Northern Regional Plan Implementation Committee has given ear to two individuals attempting to go 
around the County Administration to get more funding for another consultant and study for Lady’s 
Island.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The County Administrator requests that the Natural Resources Committee and the County Council 
support a resolution that will send a clear message that no more than an additional 25K will be 
allocated by the County. The 25k will be applied to a multi-day planning charette to develop design 
drawings and standards for the development/redevelopment of Lady’s Island.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The proposed cost for the additional study will range from 25-50K depending on the level of 
participation from the City of Beaufort should this latest initiative be funded.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve the resolution authorizing the County Administrator to approve 25k for a multi-day planning 
charette to develop design drawings and standards for the development/redevelopment of Lady’s 
Island.   

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve the resolution authorizing the County Administrator to approve 25k for a multi-
day planning charette to develop design drawings and standards for the 
development/redevelopment of Lady’s Island.   

Move forward to Council on February 14th, 2022.  

 

146

Item 15.



RESOLUTION 2022 / __ 

  

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO LIMIT 

FUNDING REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL PLANNING INITIATIVES FOR LADY’S 

ISLAND. 

 

WHEREAS, in 2019 the City and the County completed an area plan for Lady’s Island that 

involved an extensive public input and engagement process that established growth management 

tools that will ensure Lady’s Island develops appropriately if those tools are implemented and 

maintained in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the Lady’s Island Plan incorporated an impact fee funded traffic study conducted by 

Stantec that was completed in 2017 and updated in 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, a capital projects sales tax referendum was approved by voters in 2018 allocates $30 

million in transportation projects that implement the Lady’s Island Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, both Beaufort County and the City of Beaufort have form-based codes that create 

the appropriate regulatory environment to implement the vision for the Lady’s Island Village 

Center; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, the County Administrator is hereby authorized 

to provide funding not to exceed $25,000 for a design planning charrette to develop design criteria 

and drawings to enhance the implementation of the Lady’s Island Plan. 

 

   

Adopted this ___ day of __________ 2022. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

    

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Joseph Passiment, Chairman       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, JD, Clerk to Council 

 

 

 

147

Item 15.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	01.03.22

	Item 6.	CITIZEN COMMENTS
	SKM_C22722020809410

	Item 7.	Ordinance for a Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 19 Rural and Critical Lands Properties from Various Zonings to T1 Natural Preserve (T1NP)
	00_4NRC_AIS_RCLP
	01_4NRC_Ordinance_RCLP
	02_4NRC_Staff Memo_RCLP
	03_BCOLT Support Letter
	04_CCL Support Letter

	Item 8.	Zoning Map Amendment Request for 6.26 Acres (R100 027 000 0387 0000) 186 Cherokee Farms Road from T2 Rural to T4 Hamlet Center Open.
	AIS - 186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning
	JKT_Memo_Merchant 12142021
	Ordinance_186 Cherokee Farms Road
	186 Cherokee Farms Rezoning to NRC 020722
	Item8_4NRC_Feb7_Cherokee Farms

	Item 9.	Text Amendment to the Community Development Code (CDC): Sections A.2.40 (Permitted Activities), A.4.40 (Permitted Activities), and A.5.40 (Permitted Activities) to revise the Lady’s Island Community Preservation, Lady’s Island Neighborhood Activity Center, and Lady’s Island Professional Office districts to include short-term rentals as a special use.
	4NRC_AIS_LICP LINAC LIPO STR
	LICPdistricts map
	4NRC_Staff Memo_LICP STR
	4NRC_Ordinance_LICP LINAC LIPO STR rev

	Item 10.	Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 6.55 acres (R600 041 000 0172 0000) at 28 Buckingham Plantation Drive from T4 Hamlet Center Open to T4 Neighborhood Center
	4NRC_AIS_28 Buckingham Plantation Drive
	4NRC_Staff Memo_28 Buckingham Plantation Dr
	4NRC_Ordinance_28 Buckingham Plantation Drive rev
	Item 10 NRC_Feb7_28BuckinghamPlantationPresentation

	Item 11.	Osprey Point (Mailind Bluff) Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Plan Amendment
	AIS_Osprey Point PUD Amendment
	Ordinance_Osprey Point PUD Amendment
	Osprey Pt Staff Report to NRC 020722

	Item 12.	Zoning Map Amendment/Rezoning Request for 11.66 acres (R600 009 000 0030 0000) at 100 Rawstrom Drive from T2 Rural to T2 Rural Neighborhood
	4NRC_AIS_100 Rawstrom Dr
	4NRC_Staff Memo_100 Rawstrom Dr
	4NRC_Ordinance_100 Rawstrom Dr

	Item 13.	AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO CONVEY A PORTION OF PROPERTY OWNED BY BEAUFORT COUNTY WITH TMS NO. R200 010 000 0170 0000
	00_Pineview Driveway Ordinance_AIS
	01_Pineview Driveway Ordinance_Final
	02_Pineview Driveway Ordinance_Illustation

	Item 14.	DISCUSSION OF STORMWATER UTILITY FEES AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENTS
	AIS - Stormwater Utility Military Delinquent Fee Update
	County Council Stormwater Issue
	Stormwater letter from Mayor DeVito to County

	Item 15.	Resolution authorizing the County Administrator to reject funding requests for additional planning initiatives for Lady’s Island until the 2018 Lady’s Island Plan has been adequately implemented.
	AIS- Approve funding request for additional planning on Lady's Island
	Village Center Master Plan resolution

	Bottom

